

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

FOR

CONSULTANCY SERVICES FOR CARRYING OUT LINEAMENT MAPPING OF GAMRI II HYDROPOWER PROJECT

RFP NO: CO015/2024 DATED APRIL 11, 2024

These documents are meant for the exclusive purpose of bidding against this RFP and shall not be transferred, reproduced or otherwise used for purposes other than that for which they are specifically issued.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTIO	N I – LETTER OF INVITATION	1
SECTIO	N II – INSTRUCTION TO CONSULTANTS	1
ITC. 1.	Definitions	2
ITC. 2.	Introduction	2
ITC. 3.	Conflict of Interest	2
ITC. 4.	Fraud and Corruption	3
ITC. 5.	Eligible Countries.	4
ITC. 6.	Only One Proposal per Consultant	4
ITC. 7.	Proposal Validity	4
ITC. 8.	Eligibility of Sub-consultants	4
ITC. 9.	Exclusion of Consultant or Sub-consultant	4
ITC. 10.	Clarifications and Amendments of RFP Documents	5
ITC. 11.	Proposal Security	5
ITC. 12.	Preparation of Proposals	6
ITC. 13.	Technical Proposal, Format and Content	7
ITC. 14.	Financial Proposals	8
ITC. 15.	Taxes	8
ITC. 16.	Sealing and Submission of Proposal	8
ITC. 17.	Withdrawal and Substitution of Proposals	9
ITC. 18.	Opening of Proposals	. 10
ITC. 19.	Evaluation to be Confidential	. 10
ITC. 20.	Evaluation of Technical Proposals	. 10
ITC. 21.	Public Opening and Evaluation of Financial Proposals	. 10
ITC. 22.	Negotiations	.12
ITC. 23.	Availability of Professional Staff/Experts	.13
ITC. 24.	DGPC's Right to Accept Any Proposal and to Reject Any or All Proposals	.13
ITC. 25.	Award of Contract	.13
ITC. 26.	Debriefing by DGPC	. 14
ITC. 27.	Confidentiality	. 14
ITC. 28.	Performance Evaluation of Consultant	. 14
SECTIO	N III – BID DATA SHEET	. 16
SECTIO	N IV – STANDARD BIDDING FORMS	. 19
A - TEC	HNICAL PROPOSAL FORMS	. 20
FORM T	ECH-1: Technical Proposal Submission	. 20
FORM T	ECH-2: Consultant's Organization and Experience	. 21
	TECH-3: Comments/Suggestions on the Terms of Reference and on Counterpart Staff	
Facilities	to be provided by DGPC	. 22



FORM TI	ECH-4: Description of Approach, Methodology and Work Plan	23
FORM TI	ECH-5: Team Composition and Task Assignment	24
FORM TI	ECH-6: CV for Proposal Professional Staff	25
FORM TI	ECH-7: Staffing Schedule (Not Applicable)	27
FORM TI	ECH-8: Work Schedule	29
FORM TI	ECH-9: Drawing/Specifications	30
FORM TI	ECH-10: Integrity Pact Statement	31
FORM TI	ECH-11: Declaration confirming the absence of any conflict of interest	34
FORM TI	ECH-12: Affidavit/Self- Declaration Regarding Eligibility of Bidder	35
FORM TI	ECH-13: Consultants Information	36
FORM Te	ech-14: Bank Guarantee for Proposal Security	38
FORM TI	ECH 15: Performance Evaluation System Acceptance	39
B – FINA	NCIAL PROPOSAL FORMS	40
FORM FI	N-1: Financial Proposal Submission	40
FORM FI	N-2: Summary of Costs	41
FORM FI	N-3: Breakdown of Costs by Activity	42
FORM FI	N-4: Breakdown of Remuneration (Not Applicable)	43
FORM FI	N-5: Breakdown of Reimbursable Expenses (Not Applicable)	45
SECTION	N V – GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	47
GCC.1.	Definitions	48
GCC.2.	Relationship between the Parties	49
GCC.3.	Governing Law	49
GCC.4.	Language	49
GCC.5.	Headings	50
GCC.6.	Notices	50
GCC.7.	Location	50
GCC.8.	Authority of Member in Charge	50
GCC.9.	Authorized Representatives	50
GCC.10.	Contract Performance Security	50
GCC.11.	Taxes and Duties	50
GCC.12.	Fraud and Corruption	50
GCC.13.	Effectiveness of Contract	51
GCC.14.	Termination of Contract for failure to become effective	51
GCC.15.	Commencement	51
GCC.16.	Expiration of Contract	52
GCC.17.	Entire Agreement	52
GCC.18.	Modifications or Variation	52
GCC.19.	Force Majeure	52
GCC.20.	Suspension	53



GCC.21	Termination	53
GCC.22	Standard of Performance	55
GCC.23	Law governing Services	55
GCC.24	Conflict of Interest	55
GCC.25	. Consultant not to benefit from Commissions, Discounts, etc	55
GCC.26	Consultants and Affiliates not to engage in certain activities	56
GCC.27	Prohibition of conflicting activities	56
GCC.28	. Confidentiality	56
GCC.29	Liability of the Consultant	56
GCC.30	Insurance	56
GCC.31	Accounting, Inspection and Auditing for time based Contracts	56
GCC.32	Actions requiring prior approval	56
GCC.33	Reporting Obligations	57
GCC.34	Documents prepared by Consultants	57
GCC.35	Equipment, vehicles and materials provided by DGPC	57
GCC.36	Equipment and materials provided by the Consultant	57
GCC.37.	Consultant's Personnel and Sub-consultants	57
GCC.38	. Approval of Personnel	58
GCC.39.	Working hours, overtime, leave, etc.	58
GCC.40	. Removal and/or Replacement of Personnel	58
GCC.41	Resident Project Manager	59
GCC.42	DGPC's Obligations	59
GCC.43	. Change in applicable laws	59
GCC.44	Services, Facilities and Property of DGPC	59
GCC.45	Payments	60
GCC.46	Fairness and Good Faith	62
GCC.47.	Settlement of Disputes	62
SECTIO	ON VI – SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT	64
SECTIO	ON VII – TERMS OF REFERENCE	68
1. Backg	ground	69
2. Projec	ct Location and Accessibility	69
3. Projec	ct Geology	69
4. Object	ctive of Investigation	69
5. Scope	e of Investigation	70
6. Measu	arement and Payment	71
7. Manp	ower Requirement and Experiences	71
8. Safety	and Environmental Requirements	72
9. Durat	ion of the assignment	72
SECTIO	ON VIII – CONTRACT FORMS	73



F	Form A – FORM OF LETTER OF AWARD	74
F	Form B – FORM OF CONTRACT	75
F	Form C – FORM OF PERFORMANCE SECURITY	76
S	ECTION IX – PERFORMANCE EVALUATION SYSTEM	77
1	INTRODUCTION	78
2	OBJECTIVES	78
3	PERFORMANCE EVAULATION SYSTEM (PES)	78
3.	S.1 Scope Management (15%)	78
3.2.	Time Management (20%)	78
3.3.	Quality Management (30%)	79
3.4.	General Assessment (35%)	80
4	CONSULTANT ASSESSMENT CATEGORY	80
5	EVALUATION PERIOD AND DEBARMENT	81
5.	5.1 Evaluation period	81
5.	Debarment of Consultants	81



SECTION I – LETTER OF INVITATION





LETTER OF INVITATION

Druk Green Power Corporation Limited Projects Department Thimphu, Bhutan

(DOMESTIC COMPETITIVE BIDDING)

For

Consultancy Services for Carrying out Lineament Mapping of Gamri II Hydropower Project

RFP No: CO015/2024 April 11, 2024

Druk Green Power Corporation Limited (DGPC) invites proposals to provide consulting services for "Carrying out Lineament Mapping of Gamri II Hydropower Project". Detailed scope of consulting services is provided in the Terms of Reference (refer Section VII).

The Proposals shall include all required information and documents as stipulated in the Bid Data Sheet. The Proposals shall be submitted latest by **April 26, 2024** at **15:00 hrs** and shall be opened on the same day at **15:30 hrs** (BST).

The procedural requirements for responding to this invitation are provided in the complete RFP Document, comprising of the following:

- Section I Letter of Invitation
- Section II Instructions to Consultants
- Section III Bid Data Sheet
- Section IV Standard Bidding Forms
- Section V General Conditions of Contract
- Section VI Special Conditions of Contract
- Section VII Terms of Reference
- Section VIII Standard Forms of Contract
- Section IX Performance Evaluation System

Address for response:

Head
Contracts Section
Projects and Contract Department
Druk Green Power Corporation Limited
Post Box No. 1351
Motithang, Thimphu, Bhutan
Email: d.wangdi269@drukgreen.bt



SECTION II – INSTRUCTION TO CONSULTANTS



SECTION II – INSTRUCTION TO CONSULTANTS

ITC. 1. Definitions

Unless otherwise stated, throughout this RFP, definitions and interpretations shall be as prescribed in the General Conditions of Contract (GCC).

ITC. 2. Introduction

- ITC.2.1. DGPC will select the Consultant from those listed in the Letter of Invitation in accordance with the method of selection specified in the Bid Data Sheet (BDS). The shortlisted Consultants are invited to submit a Technical Proposal and a Financial Proposal, or a Technical Proposal only, as specified in the BDS for Consulting Services required for the assignment named in the BDS. The Proposal will be the basis for contract negotiations and ultimately for a signed Contract with the selected Consultant.
- ITC.2.2. Consultants should familiarize themselves with local conditions and take these into account in preparing their Proposals if necessary.
- ITC.2.3. DGPC will provide at no cost to the Consultant the inputs and facilities specified in the BDS as per requirement, assist the Consultant on best effort basis in obtaining licenses and permits needed to carry out the Services, and make available relevant project data and reports.
- ITC.2.4. Consultants shall bear all costs with the preparation and submission of their proposals and contract negotiation. DGPC is not bound to accept any proposal and reserves the right to annul the selection process at any time prior to Contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to the DGPC.

ITC. 3. Conflict of Interest

- ITC.3.1. DGPC requires that Consultants provide professional, objective and impartial advice, and at all times hold DGPC's interest's paramount, strictly avoid conflicts with other assignments or their own corporate interests, and act without any consideration for future work. Without limitation on the generality of the foregoing Consultants, and any of their affiliates, shall be considered to have a conflict of interest, and shall not be awarded a contract, under any of the circumstances set forth below:
 - a) Conflicting Activities: A firm that has been engaged by DGPC to provide goods, works or services other than Consulting Services for a project, and any of its affiliates, shall be disqualified from providing Consulting Services related to those goods, works or services. A firm hired to provide Consulting Services for the preparation or implementation of a project, and any of its affiliates, shall be disqualified from subsequently providing goods or works or services resulting from or directly related to the firm's Consulting Services for such preparation or implementation. For the purposes of this clause, services other than Consulting Services are defined as those leading to a measurable physical output, for example surveys, exploratory drilling, aerial photography, and satellite imagery.
 - b) **Conflicting Assignments:** A Consultant, including its Sub Consultants, affiliates and the Personnel of any of the foregoing, shall not be hired for any assignment that, by its nature, may be in conflict with another assignment of the Consultant to be executed for DGPC or for another Procuring Agency. Similarly, a Consultant hired to prepare Terms of Reference for an assignment, or otherwise to provide any other services during the preparatory stages of the assignment or of the project of which the assignment forms a part, shall not be hired for the assignment in question.
 - **c) Conflicting Relationships:** A Consultant, including its Sub Consultant, affiliates and the Personnel of any of the foregoing:



- i. that has a business relationship with a member of DGPC's staff who is directly or indirectly involved in any part of (i) the preparation of the Terms of Reference of the assignment, (ii) the selection process for such assignment, or (iii) supervision of the Contract, may not be awarded a Contract, unless the conflict stemming from this relationship has been resolved in a manner acceptable to DGPC throughout the selection process and the execution of the Contract.
- ii. that employs or otherwise engages a spouse, or any of the dependent parent of an employee or close relative of DGPC employee, shall not be eligible to be awarded a Contract. For the purposes of this sub-paragraph, a close relative is defined as immediate family which includes, brother, sister, and own children.
- ITC.3.2. Consultants have an obligation to disclose any situation of actual or potential conflict that impacts their capacity to serve the best interests of DGPC, or that may reasonably be perceived as having Conflict of Interest. Failure to disclose said situations may lead to the disqualification of the Consultant or the termination of its Contract.
- ITC.3.3. When the Consultant nominates any present or previous government employee as Personnel in its Technical Proposal, such Personnel must have written certification from the Royal Civil Service Commission of Bhutan or their employer confirming that:
 - a) They are not current employees of their previous official employer,
 - b) They are on leave without pay from their official position, and
 - c) They are allowed to work full-time outside of their previous official position.

Such certification (s) shall be provided to DGPC by the Consultant as part of its Technical Proposal.

ITC.3.4. When the Consultant nominates any former employee of DGPC as Personnel in its Technical Proposal it must ensure, and so certify in its Technical Proposal, that no conflict of interest exists in the scope of the former employee's inclusion within the Consultant's Personnel being proposed to provide the Consultancy Services.

ITC. 4. Fraud and Corruption

- ITC.4.1. DGPC requires that Consultants, their Sub-Consultants and the Personnel of them both, shall observe the highest standards of ethics during the procurement process and execution of contracts. In pursuance of this policy, the terms "Corrupt practice", "Fraudulent practice", "Collusive practice", "Coercive practice and "Obstructive practice" shall be as per definition in GCC.12.
- ITC.4.2. DGPC will reject a Proposal for award if it determines that the Consultant recommended for award has, directly or through an agent, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practices in competing for the Contract in question.
- ITC.4.3. DGPC will sanction a Consultant or individual, including declaring them ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, to be awarded a Contract if at any time it determines that they have, directly or through an agent, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practices in competing for, or in executing, for the Contract in question.
- ITC.4.4. DGPC requires that Consultants, as a condition of admission to eligibility, execute and attach to their Bids an Integrity Pact Statement in the form provided in FORM TECH-10: Integrity Pact Statement of Section III. Failure to provide a duly executed Integrity Pact Statement may result in disqualification of the Bid; and

ITC.4.5. DGPC will report any case of corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practice to the relevant agencies, including but not limited to

the Anti-corruption Commission (ACC) of the Kingdom of Bhutan, for necessary action in accordance with the statutes and provisions of the relevant agency.

- ITC.4.6. Furthermore, the Bidders shall make themselves fully aware of the provisions stated in GCC.12.
- ITC.4.7. Consultants shall furnish information on commissions and gratuities, if any, paid or to be paid to agents relating to this proposal and during execution of the assignment if the Consultant is awarded the Contract, as requested in the Form FIN-1 of Section IV.

ITC. 5. Eligible Countries

- ITC.5.1. Consultancy Services provided under the Contract may originate from any country except if:
 - a) as a matter of law or official regulation, RGoB prohibits commercial relations with that country; or
 - b) by an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, Bhutan prohibits any services from that country or any payments to persons or entities in that country.

ITC. 6. Only One Proposal per Consultant

ITC.6.1. A Consultant may only submit one proposal against this RFP. If a Consultant submits or participates in more than one proposal, such proposals shall be disqualified. However, this does not limit the participation of the same Sub-Consultant, including individual experts, in more than one proposal.

ITC. 7. Proposal Validity

ITC.7.1. The BDS indicates how long Consultants' Proposals must remain valid after the submission date. During this period, Consultants shall maintain the availability of professional staff nominated in the Proposal. DGPC will make its best efforts to complete evaluation and negotiations within this period. Should the need arise, DGPC may request Consultants in writing to extend the validity period of their proposals. Consultants who agree to such extension shall confirm in writing that they maintain the availability of the professional staff nominated in the Proposal or, in their confirmation of extension of validity of the Proposal. Consultants could submit new staff in replacement who would be considered in the final evaluation for Contract award. Consultants who do not agree have the right to refuse to extend the validity of their Proposals.

ITC. 8. Eligibility of Sub-consultants

ITC.8.1. In case a shortlisted Consultant intends to associate with other Consultants who have not been shortlisted and/or individual expert (s), such other Consultants and/or individual expert (s) shall be subject to the eligibility criteria as are stipulated in the BDS.

ITC. 9. Exclusion of Consultant or Sub-consultant

- ITC.9.1. A Consultant and any Sub-consultant shall not be permitted to submit a proposal or to be awarded a Contract under any of the following circumstances:
 - a) The Consultant/ Sub-consultant is insolvent or is in receivership or is a bankrupt or is in the process of being wound up; or has entered into an arrangement with the creditors; or
 - b) The Consultant's/ Sub-consultant's affairs are being administered by a court, judicial officer or appointed liquidator; or



- c) The Consultant/ Sub-consultant has suspended business or is in any analogous situation arising from similar procedures under the laws and regulations of his country of establishment; or
- d) The Consultant/ Sub-consultant has been found guilty of professional misconduct by any competent authority as per law; or
- e) The Consultant/ Sub- consultant has been guilty of misrepresentation in supplying information in its proposal or in the prior process leading to it being classified as a shortlisted Consultant; or the Consultant/ Sub-consultant has not fulfilled his obligations with regard to the payment of taxes, social security or other payments due in accordance with the laws of the country in which he is established or of the Kingdom of Bhutan; or
- f) The Consultant/ Sub-consultant has been declared by DGPC to be ineligible for participation in invitation of proposal on account of any fraud and/or corruption in competing or executing a Contract; or
- g) The Consultant/ Sub-consultant has not fulfilled any of the contractual obligations with the DGPC in the past; or
- h) The Consultant/ Sub-consultant has been debarred from participation in public procurement by any competent authority as per law.

ITC. 10. Clarifications and Amendments of RFP Documents

- ITC.10.1. Consultants may request a clarification of any part of the RFP document up to the date indicated in the BDS before the proposal submission date. Any request for clarification must be sent in writing to DGPC's address indicated in the BDS. DGPC will respond in writing, and will send written copies of the response (including an explanation of the query but without identifying the source of the inquiry) to all Consultants, not later than 15 days prior to the dateline/extended dateline for submission of proposals. Should DGPC deem it necessary to amend the RFP as a result of a clarification, it shall do so following the procedure under ITC.10.3 below.
- ITC.10.2. A pre-proposal meeting will be conducted only if strictly necessary to clarify doubts and concerns of the shortlisted Consultants prior to submission of proposals. Consultants are encouraged to attend a pre-proposal meeting if one is specified in the BDS. Attending the pre-proposal meeting is optional. Minutes of the pre-proposal meeting shall be circulated to all shortlisted Consultants.
- ITC.10.3. At any time before the submission of Proposals DGPC may amend the RFP by issuing an addendum in writing. The addendum shall be sent to all shortlisted Consultants and will be binding on them DGPC shall in no way responsible for any ignorance of the Consultant about the amendment to the proposals. To give Consultants reasonable time in which to take an addendum into account in their Proposals, DGPC may, if the addendum is substantial, extend the deadline for the submission of Proposals.

ITC. 11. Proposal Security

- ITC.11.1. The Consultant shall furnish, as part of its Proposal, a Proposal Security in original form, denominated in the currency and in the amount specified in the BDS.
- ITC.11.2. The Proposal Security shall:
 - a) at the Consultant's option, be in any of the following forms:
 - i. a Cash Warrant; or
 - ii. a Demand Draft; or
 - iii. Banker's Cheque/Cash order; or



- iv. a Bank Guarantee as per Form Tech-14 of Section III
- b) be issued by a financial institution of Bhutan or any foreign bank acceptable and enforceable in any financial institution of Bhutan;
- c) be promptly payable upon written demand by DGPC in case any of the conditions listed in ITC.11.6 are invoked;
- d) remain valid for a period of thirty (30) days beyond the end of the validity period of the Proposal, as extended, if applicable, in accordance with ITC. 7. Accordingly, the Proposal Security shall remain valid till the date specified in the BDS.
- ITC.11.3. The Proposal Security is to be submitted in a separate sealed envelope. Any Proposal not accompanied by adequate Proposal Security and validity shall be rejected by DGPC as non-responsive.
- ITC.11.4. No interest shall be paid by DGPC on the Proposal Security.
- ITC.11.5. The Proposal Security shall be returned to successful and unsuccessful Consultants as promptly as possible upon signing of the Contract Agreement.
- ITC.11.6. The Proposal Security shall be forfeited:
 - a) if a Consultant withdraws its Proposalas a whole or in part during the period of Proposal validity; or
 - b) if the selected Consultant fails to sign the Contract in accordance with ITC. 25:
- ITC.11.7. The Proposal Security of a JV must be in the name of the lead member.

ITC. 12. Preparation of Proposals

- ITC.12.1. The Proposal, as well as all related correspondence exchanged by the Consultant and DGPC, shall be in English.
- ITC.12.2. In preparing their Proposals, Consultants are expected to examine in detail the documents comprising the RFP. Material deficiencies in providing the information requested may result in rejection of a Proposal.
- ITC.12.3. While preparing the Technical Proposal, Consultants must pay particular attention to the following:
 - a) If a shortlisted Consultant considers that it may enhance its expertise for the associating with Consultants assignment by other venture/consortium/association or sub-consultancy it may associate with either (a) non-shortlisted Consultant(s), or (b) shortlisted Consultants, if so indicated in the BDS provided such shortlisted consultant is not participating in the bidding process himself as bidder. In the case of a joint venture/consortium/association, all partners shall be jointly and severally liable and shall indicate who will act as the leader of the ioint venture/consortium/association. In the case of ioint venture/consortium/association with non-shortlisted Consultant(s), the shortlisted Consultant shall act as joint venture/consortium/association leader.
 - b) The estimated number of Professional staff-months or the budget for executing the assignment shall be shown in the BDS, but not both. However, the Proposal shall be based on the number of Professional staff-months or the budget estimated by the Consultant.
 - c) For fixed-budget-based assignments, the available budget is given in the BDS, and the Financial Proposal shall not exceed this budget, while the estimated number of Professional staff-months shall not be disclosed.



d) Alternative professional staff shall not be proposed, and only one curriculum vita (CV) may be submitted for each position.

ITC. 13. Technical Proposal, Format and Content

- ITC.13.1. Depending on the nature of the assignment, Consultants are required to submit a Full Technical Proposal (FTP). The BDS indicates the format of the Technical Proposal to be submitted. Submission of the Technical Proposal on format other than prescribed will result in the Proposal being deemed non-responsive.
- ITC.13.2. The Technical Proposal shall provide all the information as indicated below using the Forms provided under Section III. Paragraph (c) below indicates the recommended number of pages for the description of the approach, methodology and work plan. A page is considered to be one printed side of A4 or letter size paper.
 - For the Technical Proposal, a brief description of the Consultant's organization and an outline of the recent experience of the Consultant on assignments of a similar nature is required in Form Tech-3 of Section III. In the case of a joint venture/consortium/association, this information should be provided for each partner. For each assignment, the outline should indicate the names of Sub-Consultants/Professional staff who participated, the duration of the assignment, the Contract amount, and the Consultant's involvement. Information should be provided for all those assignments for which the Consultant was legally contracted corporation or as one of the major firms within venture/consortium/association. Assignments completed bv individual Professional staff working privately or through other consulting firms cannot be claimed as the experience of the Consultant, or that of the Consultant's associates, but can be claimed by the Professional staff themselves in their CVs. Consultants should be prepared to substantiate the claimed experience if so requested by DGPC.
 - b) For the Technical Proposal comments and suggestions on the Terms of Reference including workable suggestions that could improve the quality/effectiveness of the assignment; and on requirements for counterpart staff and facilities including: administrative support, office space, local transportation, equipment, data, etc. to be provided by DGPC (Form Tech-3 of Section III).
 - c) A description of the approach, methodology and work plan for performing the assignment and covering the following subjects: technical approach and methodology, work plan, and organization and staffing schedule. Guidance on the content of this section of the Technical Proposals is provided under Form Tech-4 of Section III. The work plan should be consistent with the Work Schedule (Form Tech-8 of Section III), which shall also be provided and which will show in the form of a bar chart the timing proposed for each activity.
 - d) The list of the proposed professional staff team by area of expertise, the position that would be assigned to each staff team member, and their tasks (Form Tech-5 of Section III).
 - e) CVs of the Professional staff signed by the staff themselves or by the authorized representative of the Professional Staff (Form Tech-6 of Section III). CVs shall be supported by at least two references from past client.
 - f) Estimates of the staff input (staff-months of foreign and local professionals) needed to carry out the assignment (Form Tech-7 of Section III). The staff-months input should be indicated separately for home office and field activities, and for foreign and local Professional staff.
 - g) A detailed description of the proposed methodology and staffing for training, if the BDS specifies training as a specific component of the assignment.



- h) Any drawings and/or specifications that form part of the Technical Proposal (Form Tech-9 of Section III).
- i) Integrity Pact Statement (Form Tech- 10 of Section III) [if applicable].
- j) Declaration confirming the absence of any conflict of interest (Form Tech-11 of Section III)
- k) Affidavit/Self-Declaration Regarding Eligibility of Bidder (Form Tech-12 of Section III)
- 1) Bidder Information Form (Form Tech-13 of Section III)
- m) Performance Evaluation System Acceptance Form (Form Tech-15 of Section III)
- ITC.13.3. The Technical Proposal shall not include any financial information. A Technical Proposal containing financial information may be declared non-responsive.

ITC. 14. Financial Proposals

- ITC.14.1. The Financial Proposal shall be prepared using the attached Forms provided under Section IV. The type of contract DGPC shall be awarding shall be specified in BDS. It shall list all costs associated with the assignment, including (a) remuneration for staff (foreign and local, in the field and at the Consultant's home office), and (b) reimbursable expenses indicated in the BDS and (c) taxes payable in the home country of the consultant. If appropriate, these costs should be broken down by activity and, if also appropriate, into foreign and local expenditures. All activities and items described in the Technical Proposal must be priced separately; activities and items described in the Technical Proposal but not priced shall be assumed to be included in the prices of other activities or items.
- ITC.14.2. In case of Foreign Consultants (as individual or as a firm), the consultant may express the price of their services in freely convertible currencies, as specified BDS. The Consultants shall state the portion of their price representing local costs in Bhutanese Ngultrum (BTN).

ITC. 15. Taxes

ITC.16.1.

- ITC.15.1. The Consultant may be subject to local taxes (such as value added or sales tax, social charges or income taxes on non-resident Foreign Personnel, duties, fees, levies, etc.) on amounts payable by DGPC under the Contract. DGPC will state in the BDS if the Consultant is subject to payment of any local taxes. Any such amounts shall not be included in the Financial Proposal as they will not be evaluated, but they will be discussed at contract negotiations, and applicable amounts will be included in the Contract.
- ITC.15.2. If, after seven (7) days prior to the last date of Bid submission, any law, regulation, ordinance, order or by law having the force of law is enacted, promulgated, abrogated or changed in the Kingdom of Bhutan (which shall be deemed to include any change in interpretation or application by the competent authorities) that subsequently affects the costs and expenses of the Consultant and/or the Time for Completion, the Contract Price shall be correspondingly increased or decreased, and/or the Time for Completion shall be reasonably adjusted to the extent that the Consultant has thereby been affected in the performance of any of its obligations under the Contract. However, these adjustments would be restricted to direct transactions between DGPC and the Consultant/assignee of Foreign Consultant (if applicable).

ITC. 16. Sealing and Submission of Proposal

The Proposals shall contain no interlineations or overwriting, except as necessary to correct errors made by the Consultant itself. The person who signed the Proposal must initial such corrections. Submission letters for the Technical and Financial Proposals shall respectively be in the format of Form Tech-1 of Section III and Form FIN-1 of Section IV.

- ITC.16.2. An authorized representative of the Consultant shall initial all pages of the Technical and Financial Proposals. The authorization shall be in the form of a written power of attorney accompanying the Proposal. The signed Technical and Financial Proposals shall be marked "Original".
- ITC.16.3. The Technical Proposal shall be marked "Original" or "Copy" as appropriate. The Technical Proposals shall be sent to the addresses provided in the BDS and in the number of copies indicated in the BDS. All required copies of the Technical Proposal are to be made from the original. If there are discrepancies between the original and the copies of the Technical Proposal, the original shall govern.
- ITC.16.4. The original and all copies of the Technical Proposal shall be placed in a sealed envelope clearly marked "Technical Proposal". Similarly, the original Financial Proposal shall be placed in a sealed envelope clearly marked "Financial Proposal" followed by the reference number and name of the assignment, and with a warning "Do Not Open With The Technical Proposal."
- ITC.16.5. The envelopes containing the Technical and Financial Proposals shall be placed into an outer envelope and sealed. This outer envelope shall bear the submission address, reference number and title of the assignment, and be clearly marked.
- ITC.16.6. DGPC shall not be responsible for misplacement, loss or premature opening of the outer envelope if it is not sealed and/or marked as stipulated. This circumstance may be a case for Proposal rejection. If the Financial Proposal is not submitted in a separate sealed envelope duly marked as indicated above, this will constitute grounds for declaring the Proposal non-responsive.
- ITC.16.7. All inner envelopes shall:
 - a) be signed across their seals by the person authorized to sign the Proposal on behalf of the Consultant;
 - b) be marked "ORIGINAL" or "COPIES"; and
 - c) indicate the name and address of the Consultant to enable the Proposal to be returned unopened in case it is required to be returned.
- ITC.16.8. All inner and outer envelopes shall be sealed with adhesive or other sealant which will prevent re-opening.
- ITC.16.9. The Proposals shall be delivered by hand or by registered post in sealed envelopes to the address/addresses indicated in the BDS and received by DGPC no later than the time and the date indicated in the BDS or any extension to this date in accordance with ITC.10.3. Any proposal received after the deadline for submission shall be returned unopened.

ITC. 17. Withdrawal and Substitution of Proposals

- ITC.17.1. A Consultant may withdraw or substitute its Proposal after it has been submitted by sending a written notice in accordance with ITC. 16, duly signed by an authorized representative, and shall include a copy of the authorization (the power of attorney) in accordance with ITC.16.2. Any substitution of a Proposal must accompany the respective written substitution notice. All notices must be:
 - a) submitted in accordance with ITC. 16 above (except that withdrawal notices do not require copies), and in addition, the respective envelopes shall be clearly marked "Withdrawal" or "Substitution",
 - b) received by DGPC prior to the deadline prescribed for submission of Proposals, in accordance with ITC.16.9.
- ITC.17.2. Proposals requested to be withdrawn in accordance with ITC.17.1 shall be returned unopened to the Consultants.

ITC.17.3. No Proposal may be withdrawn or substituted in the interval between the deadline for submission of Proposals and the expiry of the period of Proposal validity specified by the Consultant in its Proposal or any extension thereof.

ITC. 18. Opening of Proposals

- ITC.18.1. Immediately after the closing date and time for submission of Proposals any envelopes marked "Withdrawal" and accompanied by a properly authorized withdrawal notice shall be put aside, and stored safely and securely ready for return to the Consultant including their Proposal.
- ITC.18.2. DGPC then shall open all remaining Technical Proposals, including any substitutions accompanied by a properly authorized substitution notice. The Financial Proposals shall remain sealed and securely stored.

ITC. 19. Evaluation to be Confidential

- ITC.19.1. From the time the Proposals are opened to the time the Contract is awarded, the Consultant shall not contact DGPC on any matter related to its Technical and/or Financial Proposal. Any effort by any Consultant to influence DGPC in the examination, evaluation, ranking of Proposals, and recommendation for Award of Contract may result in the rejection of the Consultant's Proposal.
- ITC.19.2. After the opening of Proposals, information concerning the Proposal documents or any part of the contents thereof shall not be released to any person or party that is not a member of the Proposal Evaluation Committee.
- ITC.19.3. The evaluation proceedings shall be kept confidential at all times until the award of Contract is announced.
- ITC.19.4. Evaluators of Technical Proposals shall have no access to the Financial Proposals until the technical evaluation is concluded and approved by the Competent Authority of DGPC.

ITC. 20. Evaluation of Technical Proposals

- ITC.20.1. The Evaluation Committee shall evaluate the Technical Proposals on the basis of their responsiveness to the Terms of Reference, applying the evaluation criteria, sub-criteria and points system specified in the BDS. Each responsive Proposal will be given a technical score (St). A Proposal shall be rejected at this stage if it does not respond to important aspects of the RFP, particularly the Terms of Reference, or if it fails to achieve the minimum technical score or any other criteria indicated in the BDS.
- ITC.20.2. Following the ranking of Technical Proposals, when selection is based on quality only (QBS), the first ranked Consultant shall be invited to negotiate its proposal for award of Contract in accordance with the instructions given under ITC.22 of these Instructions. For QCBS the Consultant scoring the highest combined score will be invited to Pre-Award discussion and negotiation. In case of LCS the consultant quoting the least price will be called for Pre-Award discussion and negotiation.

ITC. 21. Public Opening and Evaluation of Financial Proposals

(Applicable only for QCBS, FBS, and LCS)

ITC.21.1. After the technical evaluation is completed, DGPC shall inform the Consultants who have submitted proposals the technical scores obtained by their Technical Proposals, and shall notify those Consultants whose Proposals did not meet the minimum qualifying mark, or were considered non responsive to the RFP and TOR, that their Financial Proposals will be returned unopened after completing the selection process. DGPC shall simultaneously notify in writing those Consultants that have secured the minimum qualifying mark, the date, time and location for opening the Financial Proposals. The opening date shall allow

Consultants sufficient time to make arrangements for attending the opening. Consultants' attendance at the opening of Financial Proposals is optional.

- ITC.21.2. Financial Proposals shall be opened publicly in the presence of the Consultants representatives who choose to attend. The names of the Consultants and their technical scores shall be read aloud. The Financial Proposals of the Consultants who met the minimum qualifying mark will then be inspected to confirm that they have remained sealed and unopened. These Financial Proposals shall be then opened, and the following information read out and recorded:
 - a) name of the Consultant;
 - b) points awarded to the Technical Proposal; and
 - c) total price of the Financial Proposal.

The prices also shall be written on a notice board for the public to copy.

- ITC.21.3. DGPC shall prepare a record of the opening of the Financial Proposals, which shall include the information disclosed to those present in accordance with ITC.21.2 above. The minutes shall include, as a minimum:
 - a) the assignment title and reference number;
 - b) the date, time and place of opening of the Financial Proposals;
 - c) the prices offered by the Consultant;

ITC.21.5.

- d) the name and nationality of each Consultant;
- e) the names of attendees at the opening of the Financial Proposals, and of the Consultant they represent;
- f) details of any complaints or other comments made by Consultants' representatives attending the opening of the Financial Proposals, including the names and signatures of the representatives making the complaint(s) and/or comment(s); and
- g) the names, designations and signatures of the members of the Proposal Opening Committee or Tender Committee as the case may be.

The Consultants' representatives who are present shall be requested to sign the record. The omission of a representative's signature on the record shall not invalidate the contents and effect of the record. A copy of the record shall be distributed to all Consultants who submitted Proposals.

- ITC.21.4. The Evaluation Committee will correct any computational errors. When correcting computational errors, in case of any discrepancy between a sub total amount and the total amount, or between words and figures, the formers shall prevail. In addition to the above corrections, activities and items described in the Technical Proposal but not priced shall be assumed to be included in the prices of other activities or items. In case an activity or line item is quantified in the Financial Proposal differently from the Technical Proposal:
 - a) if the **Time-Based form of Contract** has been included in the RFP, the Evaluation Committee shall correct the quantification indicated in the Financial Proposal so as to make it consistent with that indicated in the Technical Proposal, apply the relevant unit price included in the Financial Proposal to the corrected quantity and correct the total Proposal cost, and
 - b) if the **Lump-Sum form of Contract** has been included in the RFP, no corrections are applied to the Financial Proposal in this respect.

Prices shall be converted to a single currency using the selling rates of exchange, source and date indicated in the BDS.

In the case of QCBS, the lowest evaluated Financial Proposal (Fm) will be given the maximum financial score (Sf) of 100 points. The financial scores (Sf) of the other Financial Proposals will be computed as indicated in the BDS. Proposals will be ranked

according to their combined technical (St) and financial (Sf) scores using the weights (T = the weight given to the Technical Proposal; P = the weight given to the Financial Proposal; T + P = 1) indicated in the BDS: $S = St \times T\% + Sf \times P\%$. The firm achieving the highest combined technical and financial score will be invited for negotiations.

- ITC.21.6. In the case of Fixed-Budget Selection, DGPC will select the firm that submitted the highest ranked Technical Proposal within the budget. Proposals that exceed the indicated budget will be rejected. In the case of Least-Cost Selection, DGPC will select the lowest proposal among those that passed the minimum technical score. In both cases the evaluated proposal price according to ITC.21.5 shall be considered, and the selected firm invited for negotiations.
- ITC.21.7. The Consultants of Bhutan nationality herein after referred to as Domestic Consultant shall be given preferential treatment in award of contract as specified in the BDS. The Domestic Consultant shall provide all evidence to the satisfaction of DGPC to prove that the Consultant meets the criteria to be eligible for a margin of preference in comparison of its Proposal with those of the Consultants who do not qualify for the preference. The preference can be availed provided the Domestic Consultant shall ensure that specific percentage as specified in BDS of the total man hours/ man days deployed should be of a person having Nationality of Bhutan.
- ITC.21.8. For the purpose of price preference, the Joint Venture of Domestic Consultant with International Consultant shall be treated as Domestic Bidder provided fifty percent (50%) of the total man hours/man days deployed shall be nationals having Nationality of Bhutan.

ITC. 22. Negotiations

ITC.22.1. Negotiations will be held at the date and address indicated in the BDS. The invited Consultant will, as a pre-requisite for attendance at the negotiations, confirm availability of all Professional staff. Failure to satisfy this requirement may result in DGPC proceeding to negotiate with the next-ranked Consultant. Representatives conducting negotiations on behalf of the Consultant must have written authority to negotiate and conclude a Contract.

ITC.22.2. Technical Negotiations

a) Negotiations will include a discussion of the Technical Proposal, the proposed technical approach and methodology, work plan, organization and staffing, any suggestions made by the Consultant to improve the Terms of Reference, and the Special Conditions of Contract. DGPC and the Consultant will finalize the Terms of Reference, staffing schedule, work schedule, logistics and reporting. These documents will then be incorporated into the Contract as "Description of Services". Special attention will be paid to defining clearly the inputs and facilities required from DGPC in order to ensure satisfactory implementation of the assignment. DGPC shall prepare minutes of the negotiations, which shall be signed by DGPC and the Consultant. The negotiations shall not substantially alter the original Terms of Reference or the terms of the Contract.

ITC.22.3. Financial Negotiations

- a) If applicable, it is the responsibility of the Consultant, before starting financial negotiations, to contact the local tax authorities to determine the local tax amount to be paid by the Consultant under the Contract. The financial negotiations will include a clarification (if any) of the Consultant's tax liability in Bhutan, and the manner in which it will be reflected in the Contract; and will reflect the agreed technical modifications in the cost of the services.
- b) In the cases of QCBS, Fixed-Budget Selection and the Least-Cost Selection methods involving time based Contracts, unless there are exceptional reasons the financial negotiations will involve neither the remuneration rates for staff nor other



- proposed unit rates. For other methods, Consultants will provide DGPC with the information on remuneration rates.
- c) In the case of a Lump Sum Contract where price is a factor of selection, the price shall not be negotiated.
- d) Reimbursable costs are payable on an actual expense incurred basis, and thus shall not be subject to financial negotiation.

ITC.22.4. Conclusion of Negotiations

a) Negotiations will conclude with a review of the draft Contract. To complete negotiations, DGPC and the Consultant will initial the agreed Contract. If negotiations fail, DGPC shall inform the Consultant in writing of the reasons for termination of the negotiations and then shall invite the Consultant whose Proposal received the second highest combined technical and financial score in case of QCBS to negotiate a Contract. In case of lump sum and least cost basis the next lowest will be considered. Once negotiations commence with the second ranked Consultant, DGPC shall not reopen the earlier negotiations.

ITC. 23. Availability of Professional Staff/Experts

ITC.23.1. Before contract negotiations, DGPC will require assurances that the Professional staff will actually be available. DGPC will not consider substitutions during contract negotiations unless both parties agree that undue delay in the selection process makes such substitution unavoidable or for reasons such as death or medical incapacity. If this is not the case and if it is established that Professional staff were offered in the proposal without confirming their availability, the Consultant may be disqualified. Any proposed substitute shall have equivalent or better qualifications and experience than the original candidate and be submitted by the Consultant within the period of time specified in the letter of invitation to negotiate.

ITC. 24. DGPC's Right to Accept Any Proposal and to Reject Any or All Proposals

- ITC.24.1. DGPC reserves the right to accept or reject any Proposal, and to annul the Request for Proposals process and reject all Proposals at any time prior to Contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to Consultants.
- ITC.24.2. DGPC may waive any minor infirmity, non- conformity or irregularity in a bid that does not constitute a material deviation, reservation or omission, whether or not identified by the Bidder in its bid and that does not prejudice or affect the relative ranking of any Bidder as a result of the technical and financial evaluation. DGPC may request the Bidder to submit the necessary information or documentation within a reasonable period of time to rectify non- material deviation or omission in the bid related to the documentation requirements. Such omission shall not be related to any aspect of the price of the bid. Failure of the Bidder to comply with the request may result in the rejection of bid.

ITC. 25. Award of Contract

- ITC.25.1. After completing negotiations DGPC shall award the Contract to the selected Consultant, and as soon as possible notify unsuccessful Consultants after signing of the Contract Agreement with the successful Consultant.
- ITC.25.2. Following the decision to award the Contract to the selected Consultant, the parties shall enter into a written Contract binding on both parties. The Contract shall be compatible with the Applicable Laws of Bhutan and substantially in the Form B of Section VI of this RFP. The Contract shall be signed by the duly authorized representatives of the parties and shall bear the date of signature.
- ITC.25.3. Where both the parties do not sign the Contract simultaneously,



- a) DGPC shall send to the selected Consultant two original copies of (1) the full agreed Contract and (2) the letter of acceptance (notification of award), each signed by the its duly authorized representative together with the date of signature;
- The letter of acceptance shall indicate the deadline by which it must be accepted, which shall normally be not more than 15 days from the date of its receipt by the Consultant;
- c) The Consultant, if he agrees to conclude the Contract, shall sign and date all original copies of the Contract and the letter of acceptance and return one copy of each to DGPC before the expiry of the deadline indicated in the letter of acceptance;
- d) In case the selected Consultant fails to sign the Contract agreement within the deadline specified in the letter of acceptance the Contract shall be awarded to the next lowest evaluated Consultant after concluding the negotiations as may be necessary. Such a failure shall be considered as withdrawal and the provisions of ITC.11.6 shall apply.
- ITC.25.4. The Consultant is expected to commence the assignment on the date and at the location specified in the BDS.

ITC. 26. Debriefing by DGPC

- ITC.26.1. On receipt of DGPC's Notification of Award referred to in ITC.25.1, an unsuccessful bidder has three (3) working days to make a written request to DGPC for a debriefing. DGPC shall provide a debriefing to all unsuccessful bidders whose request has been received within this deadline.
- ITC.26.2. Where a request for debriefing has been received within the deadline, DGPC shall provide a debriefing within five (5) working days.
- ITC.26.3. DGPC shall discuss only such Bid and not the bids of other competitors. The debriefing shall not include:
 - a) point-by-point comparisons with another Bid; and
 - b) information that is confidential or commercially sensitive to other Bidders.
- ITC.26.4. The Purpose of debriefing is to inform the aggrieved bidder of the reasons for lack of success, pointing out the specific shortcomings in its bid without disclosing contents of other bids.

ITC. 27. Confidentiality

ITC.27.1. Information relating to evaluation of Proposals and recommendations concerning awards shall not be disclosed to the Consultants who submitted the Proposals or to other persons not officially concerned with the process, until the publication of the award of Contract. The undue use by any Consultant of confidential information related to the process may result in the rejection of its Proposal.

ITC. 28. Performance Evaluation of Consultant

- ITC.28.1. A consultant performance evaluation is a standardized, systematic and objective assessment of a consultant's performance on a specific project contract.
- ITC.28.2. The performance evaluation criteria shall be used by each Project Manager/Site Engineer immediately with the commissioning of any services after the award of contract. The contractors shall be evaluated as the work progresses.
- ITC.28.3. The Performance Evaluation System for Contractors is at SECTION VIII of this Bidding Document.
- The Contractor is required to sign and submit the Form TCH15: Performance Evaluation Acceptance along with their bid.



SECTION III – BID DATA SHEET



BID DATA SHEET

The following specific data for the Consultancy Services to be procured shall amend and/or supplement the clauses in the Instructions to Consultants (ITC). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in the ITC.

ITC Clause Reference	Data
ITC.2.1	Method of selection: Least Cost Selection
ITC.2.1	Financial Proposal in a separate envelope to be submitted with Technical Proposal: Yes
	The name of the assignment is: Consultancy Services for Carrying out Lineament Mapping of Gamri II Hydropower Project
	Time for completion: 50 days from the date of issuance of Letter of Award
ITC.2.3	DGPC will provide the following inputs and facilities: As specified in the TOR
ITC.7.1	Proposal must remain valid till: July 25, 2024
ITC.8.1	Eligibility of sub-consultant: Not Applicable
ITC.10.1	Clarifications may be requested not later than: April 18, 2024
	Clarifications on Bidding Documents may be obtained from:
ITC.10.2	Head Contracts Section Projects and Contract Department Druk Green Power Corporation Limited Post Box No. 1351 Motithang, Thimphu, Bhutan Tel: +975-2-339875 Email: d.wangdi269@drukgreen.bt All clarifications shall be in writing and submitted in electronic format (PDF) and sent to the above email. Pre-proposal Meeting: Only, if required
ITC.11.1	Proposal Security shall be: BTN 7,000.00 in the following forms:
and ITC.11.2 (d)	 i. Cash Warrant/Demand Draft/Banker's Cheque ii. Unconditional Bank Guarantee as per FORM TECH-14 issued by a financial institute of Bhutan or any foreign bank acceptable and enforceable in any financial institution of Bhutan
	The Proposal Security shall be valid till: August 24, 2024
ITC.12.3 (a)	Shortlisted Consultants who are not submitting their own proposal may associate with other shortlisted Consultants: Not Applicable
ITC.12.3 (b)	The estimated number of professional staff-months required for the assignment is: Not Applicable
ITC 13.2 (a)	No JV/Consortium shall be allowed
ITC.13.2 (g)	Training is a specific component of this assignment: Not Applicable
ITC.14.1	Type of Contract: Lump Sum Contract



ITC Clause Reference	Data										
ITC.14.2	Foreign Consul Applicable	ltants shall s	state the portion of their price in Bhutanese Ngultrum: Not								
ITC.15.1	The tax deducted at source (TDS) is 2% of the gross value of invoice in case of Bhutanese Bidder.										
ITC.16.3 & ITC.16.9			to and submitted to:								
	Contracts Section Projects and Contract Department Druk Green Power Corporation Limited Post Box No. 1351 Motithang, Thimphu, Bhutan Tel: +975-2-339875 Email: d.wangdi269@drukgreen.bt										
			e) up to which Proposals will be received:								
	Date: April 26,										
ITC. 18	Time: 1500 Hrs		1								
11C. 18	The Proposal s.		led on:								
	Date: April 26, Time (BST): 15										
ITC.20.1	` ,		ed based on the following qualifying criteria:								
110.20.1	(i) The minimu	ım skilled aı	nd experienced manpower required for the timely and quality to be made available for the work by the Bidder shall be:								
	Personnel	Number	Qualification								
	Geologist	1	Minimum M.Sc. in geology with particular focus on tectonics and structural geology								
	Surveyor	1	5 years of work experience in topographical surveying with competency to generate contours or maps both in LISCAD as well as AutoCAD or GIS.								
			mit the qualification certificate and CVs/proof of rks for the above personnel from the employer.								
ITC.21.4	The single curr	ency for price	ce conversions: Not Applicable								
ITC.21.5	The formula fo	r determinir	ng the financial scores is the following: Not applicable								
ITC.21.7	Preferential trea	atment for I	Domestic Bidder: Not Applicable								
ITC.22.1	Expected date a	and address	for contract negotiations:								
	Mutually agre	ed date and	d time								
ITC.25.4	Expected date	for commen	acement of consulting services:								
	Date of issuar	ice of Lette	r of Award								



SECTION IV – STANDARD BIDDING FORMS



A - TECHNICAL PROPOSAL FORMS

FORM TECH-1: Technical Proposal Submission

[Location, Date]
To: [Name and address of DGPC]
Dear Sirs:
We, the undersigned, offer to provide the Consulting Services for [Insert title of assignment] in accordance with your Request for Proposal dated [Insert Date] and our Proposal. We are hereby submitting our Proposal which includes this Technical Proposal, and a Financial Proposal sealed in a separate envelope*.
We are submitting our Proposal in association with: [Insert a list with full name and address of each associate Consultant] **
We hereby declare that all the information and statements made in this Proposal are true and accept that any misrepresentation contained in it may lead to our disqualification. In this regard you may contact an of our previous Employers or the previous Employers of any of our sub-consultants or any of the employees thereof for further information.
If negotiations are held during the period of validity of the Proposal, i.e., before the date indicated in ITC.7.1, we undertake to negotiate on the basis of the proposed staff. Our Proposal is binding upon u and subject to the modifications resulting from Contract negotiations.
We undertake, if our Proposal is accepted, to commence the Consulting Services related to the assignment not later than the date indicated in ITC.25.4 and to comply with all the provisions of the Contract.
We understand you are not bound to accept any Proposal you receive.
We remain,
Yours sincerely,
Authorized Signature [In full and initials]:
Name and Title of Signatory:
Name of Firm: _
Address:
* [In case the BDS requires submission of a Technical Proposal only, replace this sentence with: "We are hereb submitting our Proposal, which includes this Technical Proposal only."] ** [Delete in case no association is foreseen.]



FORM TECH-2: Consultant's Organization and Experience

A- Consultant's Organization

[Provide here a brief (two pages) description of the background and organization of your firm/entity and each associate for this assignment.]

B- Consultant's Experience

[Using the format below, provide information on each assignment for which your firm, and each associate for this assignment, was legally contracted either individually as a corporate entity or as one of the major companies within an association, for carrying out consulting services similar to the ones requested under this assignment. Use 20 pages maximum, listing in the order of most recent first]

Details of previous assignments:

Assignment name:	Approx. value of the contract (in BTN):
Procuring Agency:	Duration of assignment (months):
	Total number of staff months of the assignment:
Address	Approximate value of the services provided by your firm under the contract (BTN):
Start date (month/year):	Number of professional staff-months provided by associated Consultants:
Completion date (month/year):	
Name of associated Consultants, if any:	Name of senior professional staff of your firm involved and functions performed (indicate most significant profiles such as Project Director/Coordinator, Team Leader)
Narrative description of Project:	
Description of actual services provided by	your staff within the assignment:

Firm's Name:



FORM TECH-3: Comments/Suggestions on the Terms of Reference and on Counterpart Staff & Facilities to be provided by DGPC

A – On the Terms of Reference

[Present and justify here any modifications or improvement to the Terms of Reference you are proposing to improve performance in carrying out the assignment (such as deleting some activity you consider unnecessary, or adding another, or proposing a different phasing of the activities). Such suggestions should be concise and to the point, and incorporated in your Proposal]

B - On Counterpart Staff and Facilities

[Comment here on counterpart staff and facilities to be provided by DGPC including: administrative support, office space, local transportation, equipment, data, etc.]



FORM TECH-4: Description of Approach, Methodology and Work Plan

[Technical approach, methodology and work plan are key components of the Technical Proposal. You are suggested to present your Technical Proposal (40 pages, inclusive of charts and diagrams) divided into the following three chapters:

- a) Technical Approach and Methodology. In this chapter you should explain your understanding of the objectives of the assignment, approach to the services, methodology for carrying out the activities and obtaining the expected output, and the degree of detail of such output. You should highlight the problems being addressed and their importance, and explain the technical approach you would adopt to address them. You should also explain the methodologies you propose to adopt and highlight the compatibility of those methodologies with the proposed approach.
- b) Work Plan. In this chapter you should propose the main activities of the assignment, their content and duration, phasing and interrelations, milestones (including interim approvals by DGPC), and delivery dates of the reports. The proposed work plan should be consistent with the technical approach and methodology, showing understanding of the TOR and ability to translate them into a feasible working plan. A list of the final documents, including reports, drawings and tables to be delivered as final output, should be included here. The work plan should be consistent with the Work Schedule of Form TECH 8: Work Schedule.
- c) Organization and Staffing. In this chapter you should propose the structure and composition of your team. You should list the main disciplines of the assignment, the key expert responsible, and proposed technical and support staff]



FORM TECH-5: Team Composition and Task Assignment

Note 1: If any of the Personnel included in the team being present or previous government employees the certificate as per requirement of ITC.3.3 to be attached with the Format.

Note 2: If any of the Personnel included in the team is any former DGPC employee, the certificate as required under ITC.3.4 should be given for such employee and attached to this format.

essional Staff				
Name of Staff	Firm	Area of Expertise	Position Assigned	Task Assigned



FORM TECH-6: CV for Proposal Professional Staff

1.	Proposed Position [only one can	ndidate shall be nominated for each position]:									
2.	Name of Firm [Insert name of firm proposing the staff]:										
3.	Name of Staff [Insert full name]:										
4.	Date of Birth:Nationa	ality:									
5.											
6.	Membership of Professional	Associations:									
7.	Other Training [Indicate signific	ant training since degrees under 5 - Education were obtained]:									
8.	Countries of Work Experience	ce: [List countries where staff has worked in the last ten years]:									
9.	Languages [For each language in	dicate proficiency: good, fair, or poor in speaking, reading, and writing]:									
10.	- •										
Em	2. Name of Staff Insert name of firm proposing the staff :										
111	[List all tasks to be performed	Handle the Tasks Assigned [Among the assignments in which the staff has been involved, indicate the following information for those assignments that best illustrate staff capability to handle the tasks listed under point 11 The details should be furnished at least for two assignments that is best related to the present assignment									



	Year:	
	Location:	
	Procuring Agency or Client: _	
	Main project features:	
	Positions held:	
	Activities performed:	
13. Certification:		
I, the undersigned, certify that to the	e best of my knowledge and belief, the	nis CV correctly describes me, my
qualifications and my experience. I	understand that any willful misstater	nent herein may lead to my
disqualification or dismissal, if enga	ged.	
·		Date:
[Signature of staff member or authorized t	representative of the staff]	Day/Month/Year
Full name of authorized representat	ive.	



FORM TECH-7: Staffing Schedule (Not Applicable)

N°	Name of Staff*	Staff input (in the form of a bar chart)** taff*										Total staff-month input					
		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	n	Home	Field***	Total
Fore	eign	I															
1		[Home]															
		[Field]															
2																	
N																	
											Subto	tal			1.1.1.1.1.		
Loca	al																
1		[Home]															
		[Field]															
2																	



N											
						Subtotal					
						Total					

^{*} For Professional Staff the input should be indicated individually; for Support Staff it should be indicated by category (e.g.: draftsmen, clerical staff, etc.).

** Months are counted from the start of the assignment. For each staff indicate separately staff input for home and field work.

*** Field work means work carried out at a place other than the Consultant's home office.





FORM TECH-8: Work Schedule

N°	Activity ¹	Months ²													
	,	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	n	
1															
2															
3															
4															
5															
n															

- 1 Indicate all main activities of the assignment, including delivery of reports (e.g.: inception, interim, and final reports), and other benchmarks such as DGPC approvals. For phased assignments indicate activities, delivery of reports, and benchmarks separately for each phase.
- 2 Duration of activities shall be indicated in the form of a bar chart.



FORM TECH-9: Drawing/Specifications

[Provide here a list of drawings and specifications (if any) contained within the Technical Proposal, and annex these hereto]



FORM TECH-10: Integrity Pact Statement

(attach an integrity pact statement pre-signed by DGPC and Consultant to submit the same after it is executed by the authorised signatory of the Consultant)

Integrity Pact Statement pre-signed by the DGPC authorised signatory, as provided by the Anti-Corruption Commission

1. General:

2. Objectives:

Whereas, the Employer and the Bidder agree to enter into this agreement, hereinafter referred to as IP, to avoid all forms of corruption or deceptive practice by following a system that is fair, transparent and free from any influence/unprejudiced dealings in the **bidding process**¹ and **contract administration**², with a view to:

- 2.1. Enabling the Employer to obtain the desired contract at a reasonable and competitive price in conformity to the defined specifications of the works or goods or services; and
- 2.2. Enabling bidders to abstain from bribing or any corrupt practice in order to secure the contract by providing assurance to them that their competitors will also refrain from bribing and other corrupt practices.

3. Scope:

The validity of this IP shall cover the bidding process and contract administration period.

4. Commitments of the Employer:

The Employer Commits itself to the following:-

- 4.1. The Employer hereby undertakes that no officials of the Employer, connected directly or indirectly with the contract, will demand, take a promise for or accept, directly or through intermediaries, any bribe, consideration, gift, reward, favor or any material or immaterial benefit or any other advantage from the Bidder, either for themselves or for any person, organization or third party related to the contract in exchange for an advantage in the bidding process and contract administration.
- 4.2. The Employer further confirms that its officials shall not favor any prospective bidder in any form that could afford an undue advantage to that particular bidder in the bidding process and contract administration and will treat all Bidders alike.

² Contract administration, for the purpose of this IP, shall mean contract award, contract implementation, unauthorized sub-contracting and contract handing/taking over.



_

¹ Bidding process, for the purpose of this IP, shall mean the procedures covering tendering process starting from bid preparation, bid submission, bid processing, and bid evaluation.

- 4.3. Officials of the Employer, who may have observed or noticed or have reasonable suspicion shall report to the head of the employing agency or an appropriate government office any violation or attempted violation of clauses 4.1 and 4.2.
- 4.4. Following report on violation of clauses 4.1 and 4.2 by official (s), through any source, necessary disciplinary proceedings, or any other action as deemed fit, including criminal proceedings shall be initiated by the Employer and such a person shall be debarred from further dealings related to the bidding process and contract administration.

5. Commitments of Bidders

The Bidder commits himself/herself to take all measures necessary to prevent corrupt practices, unfair means and illegal activities during any stage of the bidding process and contract administration in order to secure the contract or in furtherance to secure it and in particular commits himself/herself to the following:

- 5.1. The Bidder shall not offer, directly or through intermediaries, any bribe, gift, consideration, reward, favor, any material or immaterial benefit or other advantage, commission, fees, brokerage or inducement to any official of the Employer, connected directly or indirectly with the bidding process and contract administration, or to any person, organization or third party related to the contract in exchange for any advantage in the bidding process and contract administration.
- 5.2. The Bidder shall not collude with other parties interested in the contract to manipulate in whatsoever form or manner, the bidding process and contract administration.
- 5.3. If the bidder(s) have observed or noticed or have reasonable suspicion that the provisions of the IP have been violated by the procuring agency or other bidders, the bidder shall report such violations to the head of the procuring agency.

6. Sanctions for Violation:

The breach of any of the aforesaid provisions shall result in administrative charges or penal actions as per the relevant rules and laws.

- 6.1. The breach of the IP or commission of any offence (forgery, providing false information, misrepresentation, providing false/fake documents, bid rigging, bid steering or coercion) by the Bidder, or any one employed by him, or acting on his/her behalf (whether with or without the knowledge of the Bidder), shall be dealt with as per the terms and conditions of the contract and other provisions of the relevant laws, including De-barment Rules.
- 6.2. The breach of the IP or commission of any offence by the officials of the procuring agency shall be dealt with as per the rules and laws of the land in vogue.

7. Monitoring and Administration:

- 7.1. The respective procuring agency shall be responsible for administration and monitoring of the IP as per the relevant laws.
- 7.2. The bidder shall have the right to appeal as per the arbitration mechanism contained in the relevant rules.

We, hereby declar	re that we have read	d and understood	I the clauses of th	nis agreement and	shall abide by it

The parties hereby sign this	Integrity Pact at (blace)	on (date)
------------------------------	---------------------------	-----------





Affix Legal Stamp

EMPLO	YER												В	IDD]	ER/I	REP	RES	EN	JT <i>P</i>	ΥI	VE	,		
CID:	1	1	1	0	5	0	0	3	9	4	0	CID):											
Witness:		Ø	Xu									Wit	nes	ss:										
Name: I	Phub	Zar	n									Na	me	:										
CID:	1	0	2	0	4	0	0	1	4	7	8		CI	ID:										



FORM TECH-11: Declaration confirming the absence of any conflict of interest

Subject:	Declaration confirming the absence of any conflict of interest
Ref:	
of	[insert the name and designation of the signatory] the duly authorized representative[insert name of the Bidder], submitting a proposal in respect of invitation for proposals umber (), hereby confirm:

- that I/We do not have a business relationship with a member of DGPC's staff who is directly or
 indirectly involved in any part of (i) the preparation of the Terms of Reference of the assignment, (ii)
 the selection process for such assignment, and/or (iii) supervision of the Contract,
- that I/ We have not employed or otherwise engaged a spouse, or any of the dependent parent of an employee or close relative³ of DGPC employee
- (insert if applicable) that I/ We confirm that we have nominated (insert name) former employee of DGPC as personnel in the Technical Proposal and we certify that no conflict of interest exists in the scope of the MR. XYZ inclusion to provide the Consultancy Services.
- (insert if applicable) that I / we have nominated (insert name), present or previous (insert as applicable) Royal government of Bhutan employee as Personnel in the Technical Proposal. (Insert name) have written certification from the Royal Civil Service Commission of Bhutan or their employer (insert name of the employer) confirming that
 - They are not current employees of their previous official employer.
 - They are on leave without pay from their official position, and
 - They are allowed to work full-time outside of their previous official position

Such certification is also attached as a part of this technical proposal.

Sealed and Signed

³relative is defined as immediate family which includes, brother, sister, and own children



34

FORM TECH-12: Affidavit/Self- Declaration Regarding Eligibility of Bidder

I
I solemnly declare and affirm that to the best of my knowledge, information, and belief, the above Bidde

(To be executed on non-judicial stamp paper)

- a) Is not insolvent or is not in receivership or is not a bankrupt or is not in the process of being wound up, or has not entered into an arrangement with creditors; or
- b) Affairs are not are being administered by a court, judicial officer or appointed liquidator; or
- c) Has not suspended business or is not in any analogous situation arising from similar procedures under the laws and regulations of his country of establishment; or
- d) Have not been found guilty of professional misconduct by any competent authority as per law; or
- e) Have fulfilled the obligations with regard to the payment of taxes, social security or other payments due in accordance with the laws of the country in which the Bidder is established or of the Kingdom of Bhutan; or
- f) Have not been declared by Druk Green to be ineligible for participation in tenders on account of any fraud and/or corruption in competing or executing a Contract; or
- g) has fulfilled all the contractual obligations with the DGPC in the past

Verified on this	day of	of the year	thai
the particulars furnished above are t	•	-	
material have been concealed or mis	represented.		

Sealed and Signed:



FORM TECH-13: Consultants Information

[The Consultant shall fill in this Form in	accordance with the	: instructions indicated	d below. No alteration	ıs to its format shall
be permitted and no substitutions shall be a	iccepted]			

Date:[insert date of Proposal submission]
NIT No.:

1.	Consultants Legal Name:
2.	CDB registration number in case of Domestic Bidder
	(Also attach the photocopy of the certificate)
3.	In the case of a Joint Venture (JV) legal name of each member of the Joint Venture:
4.	Each member of JV's Country of Registration:
5.	Each member of JV's Certificate of Incorporation:
6.	Each member of JV's Year of Registration:
7.	Each member of JV's Legal Address in Country of Registration:
8.	Each member of JV's Principal Place of Business
9.	A certificate from Chartered Accountant regarding majority ownership of the company by nationals of Bhutan as on 30 days prior to the bid submission deadline (applicable for Domestic Bidders)
10.	Lead member of JV's Local Address in Bhutan (if any):
11.	Consultant or Each member of JV's Website Address:
12.	Consultant or Each member of JV's Business Activities:



13.	Consultant or Lead member of JV's Authorized Representative						
	Name:						
	Designation:						
	Address:						
	Telephone/Fax numbers:						
	E-mail Address:						
14.	Consultant or Lead member of JV's Authorized Representative in Bhutan (if any)						
	Name of the company or firm:						
	Name of the contact person:						
	Designation:						
	Address:						
	Telephone/Fax numbers:						
	E-mail Address:						
	Services to be provided by the local representative:						
15.	Status of the Consultant (check the box as applicable):						
	€ Bidding Company						
	€ Lead Member of the Joint Venture						
	€ Agent of the Foreign Consultant						
16.	Attached are copies of the following original documents: [check the box(es) of the attached original documents]						
	€ Tax Clearance Certificate of Consultant named in 1 or 2 above (applicable for Bhutanese Bidders)						
	€ Certificate of Incorporation or Registration of Consultant named in 1 or 2 above						
	€ Any other certificate to support the legal entity of the Consultant named in 1 or 2 above						

Sealed and Signed:



FORM Tech-14: Bank Guarantee for Proposal Security

WHEREAS, [insert name of Bidder] (hereinafter called the "Bidder") has submitted his bid dated [insert date] for the [insert name of contract] (hereinafter called the "Bid").

KNOWN ALL MEN by these presents that We [insert name of Bank] of [insert name of Country] having our registered office at [insert address] (hereinafter called the "Bank") are bound unto [insert name of PROCURING ENTITY] (hereinafter called the "Entity") in the sum of [insert amount] for which payment well and truly to be made to the said Entity the Bank binds himself, his successors and assigns by these presents.

SEALED with the Common Seal of the said Bank this day of	_ 20
--	------

THE CONDITIONS of this obligation are if the Bidder: (a) Withdraws his Bid during the period of bid validity specified in the Form of Bid; or (b) if the selected Consultant fails to sign the Contract in accordance with the Instruction to Consultant; or

We undertake to pay the Entity up to the above amount upon receipt of his first written demand, without the Entity having to substantiate his demand, provided that in his demand the Entity will note that the amount claimed by him is due to him owing to the occurrence of one or both of the two (2) conditions, specifying the occurred condition or conditions. The Guarantee will remain in force up to and including the date [insert days}] days after the as stated in the Instruction to Consultant or as it may be extended by the Entity, notice of which extension(s) to the Bank is hereby waived. Any demand in respect of this Guarantee should reach the Bank not later than the above date.

DATE		SIGNATURE OF THE BANK
	WITNESS	
SEAL		

Signature, Name and Address



FORM TECH 15: Performance Evaluation System Acceptance
То
[DGPC's Name and Address]
Dear Sir/Madam,
With reference to our Proposal dated
1. We agree to abide by all the provisions on performance evaluation of consultants for services.
2. If our proposal is accepted, we agree to be assessed as per the performance evaluation rating methodology adopted by DGPC.
3. We accept the rating depending on our performance and any action thereof.
4. We shall be liable for any breach of this undertaking and non-compliance to the provisions of performance evaluation system.

Sealed and signed



B – FINANCIAL PROPOSAL FORMS

FORM FIN-1: Financial Proposal Submission

[Location, Date]

To:	o: [Name and address of DGPC]		
Dear 3	Sirs:		
your I is for by De	Request for Proposal dated [Insert at the sum of [Insert amount(s) in word	Date] and our Technical Proposts and figures*]. This amount is ent or reimburse the Consulta	t title of assignment] in accordance with sal. Our attached Financial Proposal acclusive of local taxes (either to be paid nt for any such taxes paid by the the above amount.
			difications resulting from Contract .e. before the date indicated in ITC
execu commis	tion, if we are awarded the Con	tract, are listed below (If apple paid by us to agents relating to this I	ting to this Proposal and Contract icable, replace this paragraph with: "No Proposal and Contract execution"): These tioned above.
	Name and Address of Agent Currency	Amount and or Gratuity	Purpose of Commission
We ur	nderstand you are not bound to ac	ccept any Proposal you receive.	
We re	main,		
Yours	sincerely,		
Autho	orized Signature [In full and initials]		
Name	and Title of Signatory:		
Name	of Firm: _		
Addre	ess:		
*Amoi	unts must coincide with the ones indicate	ed under Total Cost of Financial Pr	oposal in Form FIN-2.



FORM FIN-2: Summary of Costs

Activities	Total Amount (BTN)
Lineament Mapping of Gamri II Hydropower Project	



FORM FIN-3: Breakdown of Costs by Activity

Activity	Unit	Qty	Rate	Amount (BTN)
Lineament Mapping	Sq.km	35.00		

Amount in Words:



FORM FIN-4: Breakdown of Remuneration (Not Applicable)

(This Form FIN-4 shall only be used when the Lump-Sum Form of Contract has been included in the RFP for each activity separate form has to be prepared and submitted)

Name	Position	Staff- month Rate	Input (Staff- months)	UDS/Euro/ BTN per month	Amount (UDS/Euro/BTN)
Foreign Staff			•		1
		[Home]			
		[Field]			
		[Home]			
		[Field]			
		[Home]			
		[Field]			
		[Home]			
		[Field]			
		[Home]			
		[Field]			
		[Home]			
		[Field]			
		[Home]			
		[Field]			
		[Home]			
		[Field]			
		[Home]			
		[Field]			
		[Home]			
		[Field]			
		[Home]			
		[Field]			
		[Home]			
		[Field]			
		[Home]			
		[Field]			
Total Costs*					

^{*}Total cost for each activity should equal to the total cost of remuneration as shown for that activity in form FIN 3



(This Form FIN-4 shall only be used when the Lump-Sum Form of Contract has been included in the RFP. Information to be provided in this Form shall only be used to establish payments to the Consultant for possible additional services requested by DGPC) – Not Applicable

Name	Position	Staff-month Rate
Foreign Staff		
		[Home]
		[Field]
Local Staff		
		[Home]
		[Field]



FORM FIN-5: Breakdown of Reimbursable Expenses (Not Applicable)

(This Form FIN-5 shall only be used when the Lump-Sum Form of Contract has been included in the RFP)

No	Description	Unit	Unit Cost

^{*}The total costs in this format for each activity should be equal to the total expenses for such activity shown in form FIN 3



(*This Form FIN-5 shall only be used when the Lump-Sum Form of Contract has been included in the RFP.* Information to be provided in this Form shall only be used to establish payments to the Consultant for possible additional services requested by DGPC) – **Not Applicable**

No	Description	Unit	Rate



SECTION V – GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT



SECTION V - GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

GCC.1. Definitions

- GCC.1.1. The following words and expressions shall have the meaning hereby assigned to them except where the context otherwise requires.
 - a) "Affiliate" means business concerns, organisations, or individuals that control each other or that are controlled by a common third party. Control may include shared management or ownership, common use of facilities, equipment and employees; or family interest.
 - b) "Applicable Laws of Bhutan" means the laws and any other instruments having the force of law in Bhutan;
 - c) "Consultant" means an individual or a legal entity entering into a Contract to provide the Services to DGPC under the Contract;
 - d) "Consulting Services" means expert services of a professional and/or intellectual nature, provided by the Consultant based on specialized expertise and skills, pursuant to the Contract executed between DGPC and Consultant; Consultancy Services includes but not limited to policy advice, institutional reforms, management, engineering services, construction supervision, financial services, procurement services, social and environmental studies, hydrological studies, geotechnical and seismic studies, lineament mapping and identification, preparation of prefeasibility, feasibility and detailed project reports and implementation of projects;
 - e) "Contract" means the formal agreement in writing, entered into between DGPC and the consultant on acceptable terms and conditions and which are in compliance with all the relevant provisions of the laws of the Kingdom of Bhutan;
 - f) "Data Sheet" means such part of the Instructions to Consultants used to reflect specific assignment conditions;
 - g) "Day" means calendar day of the Gregorian calendar. However, "Working day" as used herein means all calendar days excluding Sundays and Government holidays in the Kingdom of Bhutan;
 - h) "DGPC" means Druk Green Power Corporation Limited including its successors and permitted assigns;
 - i) Domestic Bidder" shall mean any Bidder having nationality of Bhutan or a group of legal entities all members of the group having nationality of Bhutan. A legal entity shall be considered as having the nationality of Bhutan if it is registered within Bhutan constituted under and governed by the civil, commercial or public laws of Bhutan, and have its statutory office, central administration or principal place of business in Bhutan:
 - j) "Effective Date" means the date on which this Contract comes into force and effect pursuant to GCC.13;
 - k) "Foreign Currency" shall mean any currency other than Bhutanese Ngultrum (BTN)
 - 1) "GCC" means General Conditions of Contract;
 - m) "Government" means the Royal Government of Bhutan (RGoB).
 - "In Writing" means communicated in written form (eg by mail, electronic mail, fax,
) with proof of receipt;
 - o) "ITC" means Instructions to Consultants;



- p) "LOI" means Letter of Invitation;
- q) "Month" means calendar month of the Gregorian Calendar.
- r) "Member" means any of the entities that make up the joint venture/consortium/association; and "Members" means all these entities.
- s) "Party" means the DGPC or the Consultant, as the context requires, and "Parties" means both of them.
- t) "Personnel" means professional and support staff provided by the Consultant or by any Sub-Consultants and assigned to perform the Services or any part thereof; "Foreign Personnel" means such professional and support staff who at the time of being so provided have their domicile outside Bhutan; "Local Personnel" means such professional and support staff who at the time of being so provided have their domicile in Bhutan; and "Key Personnel" means the Personnel referred to in GCC.37.2.
- u) "RFP" means Request for Proposal;
- v) "SCC" means the Special Conditions of Contract by which the GCC may be amended or supplemented;
- w) "Sub-Consultant" means a Consultant selected to provide a pre specified service and nominated as sub-consultant to the main Consultant for such purpose;
- x) "Terms of Reference (TOR)" means the document included in the RFP as Section V which defines the objectives, goals, scope of work, activities, tasks, responsibilities of DGPC and the Consultant, required outputs and results of the assignment, as well as background information (including a list of existing relevant studies and basic data) to facilitate the Consultants' preparation of their proposals.
- y) "Third Party" means any person or entity other than DGPC, the Consultant or a Sub-Consultant.

GCC.2. Relationship between the Parties

GCC.2.1. Nothing contained herein shall be construed as establishing a relationship of master and servant or of principal and agent as between DGPC and the Consultant. The Consultant, subject to the Contract, has complete charge of Personnel and Sub-Consultants, if any, performing the Services and shall be fully responsible for the Services performed by them or on their behalf hereunder.

GCC.3. Governing Law

- GCC.3.1. The Contract shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the Kingdom of Bhutan. The courts of Thimphu shall have exclusive jurisdiction in all matters arising out of the Contract unless otherwise stated in the SCC.
- GCC.3.2. The Consultant shall, in all matters arising in the performance of the Contract, comply in all respects, give all notices and pay all fees required by the provisions of any statute, ordinance or other law or any regulation or by law of any duly constituted authority of the Kingdom of Bhutan.
- GCC.3.3. The Consultant shall indemnify and hold harmless DGPC from and against any and all liabilities, damages, claims, fines, penalties and expenses of whatever nature arising or resulting from the violation of such laws by the Consultant or its personnel including its Sub-Consultants and their employees.

GCC.4. Language

GCC.4.1. The Contract, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the Contract exchanged by the Consultant and DGPC, shall be written in English. Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Contract may be in another



language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in English, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Contract, the translation shall govern.

GCC.4.2. The Consultant shall bear all costs of translation to the governing language and all risks of the accuracy of such translation, for documents provided by the Consultant.

GCC.5. Headings

GCC.5.1. The headings shall not limit, alter or affect the meaning of this Contract.

GCC.6. Notices

- GCC.6.1. Any notice, request or consent required or permitted to be given or made pursuant to this Contract shall be in writing. Any such notice, request or consent shall be deemed to have been given or made when delivered in person to an authorized representative of the Party to whom the communication is addressed, or when sent to such Party at the address specified in the SCC.
- GCC.6.2. A Party may change its address for notice hereunder by giving the other Party notice in writing of such change to the address specified in the SCC.

GCC.7. Location

GCC.7.1. The Services shall be performed at such locations as are specified in SCC, Appendix A of Appendices hereto and, where the location of a particular task is not so specified, at such locations, whether in Bhutan or elsewhere, as DGPC may approve.

GCC.8. Authority of Member in Charge

GCC.8.1. In case the Consultant consists of a joint venture/consortium/association of more than one entity, the Members hereby authorize the entity specified in the SCC to act on their behalf in exercising all the Consultant's rights and obligations towards DGPC under this Contract, including without limitation the receiving of instructions and payments from DGPC.

GCC.9. Authorized Representatives

GCC.9.1. Any action required or permitted to be taken, and any document required or permitted to be executed under this Contract by DGPC or the Consultant may be taken or executed by the officials specified in the SCC.

GCC.10. Contract Performance Security

GCC.10.1. If specified in the SCC, the Consultant shall provide securities for due performance of the Contract, in the manner specified and as per the terms set forth in the SCC.

GCC.11. Taxes and Duties

GCC.11.1. As per ITC.15.1, DGPC will either pay or reimburse the Consultant for payment of such indirect taxes, duties, fees and other impositions levied under the Applicable Laws of Bhutan.

GCC.12. Fraud and Corruption

- GCC.12.1. It is required that Consultants, their Sub-Consultants and the Personnel of both of them observe the highest standards of ethics during the execution of the Contract.
- GCC.12.2. For the purposes of this sub-clause, the terms set forth are defined as follows:
 - a) "corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;
 - b) "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;



- "collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;
- d) "coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;
- e) "obstructive practice" is
 - i. deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede any investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation, or
 - ii. acts intended materially to impede the exercise of the inspection rights of DGPC or any organization or person appointed by DGPC.
- GCC.12.3. DGPC will cancel the Contract if it at any time determines that representatives of the Consultant, any Sub-Consultant, the personnel of either of them, or any other participant in the procurement and Contract execution process, were engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practices during the procurement and selection process or the execution of the Contract.
- GCC.12.4. DGPC will sanction a Consultant, Sub-Consultant or the personnel of either of them, including declaring them ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, to be awarded a DGPC Contract if at any time it determines that they have, directly or through an agent, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practices in competing for, or in executing, a DGPC Contract.
- GCC.12.5. DGPC will report the case of corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practice to the relevant RGoB agencies, including but not limited to the Anti-Corruption Commission (ACC) of Bhutan, for necessary action in accordance with the statutes and provisions of the relevant agency.
- GCC.12.6. DGPC will require the successful Consultant to disclose any commissions or fees that may have been paid or are to be paid to agents, representatives or commission agents with respect to the selection process or the execution of the Contract. The information disclosed must include at least the name and address of the agent, representative or commission agent, the amount and currency, and the purpose of the commission or fee.

GCC.13. Effectiveness of Contract

GCC.13.1. This Contract shall come into force and effect on the date (the "Effective Date") of DGPC's notice to the Consultant instructing the Consultant to begin carrying out the Services. This notice shall confirm that the effectiveness conditions, if any, listed in the SCC have been met.

GCC.14. Termination of Contract for failure to become effective

GCC.14.1. If this Contract has not become effective within such time period after the date of the Contract signed by the Parties as specified in the SCC, either Party may, by not less than twenty one (21) days written notice to the other Party, declare this Contract to be null and void, and in the event of such a declaration by either Party, neither Party shall have any claim against the other Party with respect hereto.

GCC.15. Commencement

GCC.15.1. The Consultant shall begin carrying out the Services not later than the number of days after the Effective Date specified in the SCC.



GCC.16. Expiration of Contract

- GCC.16.1. Unless terminated earlier pursuant to GCC.21 hereof, this Contract shall expire at the end of such time period after the Effective Date as is specified in the SCC.
- GCC.16.2. If the Contractor fails to complete the work within the stipulated time, then Liquidated Damage shall be deducted as mentioned in the SCC.

GCC.17. Entire Agreement

GCC.17.1. This Contract contains all covenants, stipulations and provisions agreed by the Parties. No agent or representative of either Party has authority to make, and the Parties shall not be bound by or be liable for, any statement, representation, promise or agreement not set forth herein.

GCC.18. Modifications or Variation

GCC.18.1. Any modification or variation of the terms and conditions of this Contract, including any modification or variation of the scope of the Services, may only be made by written agreement between the Parties. However, each Party shall give due consideration to any proposals for modification or variation made by the other Party.

GCC.19. Force Majeure

- GCC.19.1. "Force Majeure" shall mean any event or circumstance beyond the control of DGPC or of the Consultant, as the case may be, and which is unavoidable notwithstanding the reasonable care of the Party affected and which substantially affect the performance of the Contract. The event and circumstances of Force Majeure shall include, without limitation, the following:
 - a) war, hostilities or warlike operations (whether a state of war be declared or not), invasion, act of foreign enemy and civil war;
 - b) rebellion, revolution, insurrection, mutiny, usurpation of civil or military government, conspiracy, riot, civil commotion and terrorist acts;
 - c) confiscation, nationalization, mobilization, commandeering or requisition by or under the order of any government or de-jure or de-facto authority or ruler or any other act or failure to act of any government authority;
 - d) strike by persons other than Contactor's or Sub Consultants employees/workers/labourers, sabotage, lockout, freight embargo, import restriction, port congestion, lack of usual means of public transportation and communication, industrial dispute, shipwreck, epidemics, quarantine and plague;
 - e) earthquake, landslide, volcanic activity, fire, flood or inundation, tidal wave, typhoon or cyclone, hurricane, storm, lightning, or other inclement weather condition (Inclement weather conditions shall either be in winter or in monsoon season which results in stoppage of work and such stoppage of work is duly recorded in the hindrance records maintained by the Druk Green for each contract. Provided where for the period of monsoon, the completion time has already been excluded), nuclear and pressure waves or other natural or physical disaster;
 - f) shortage of labor, materials or utilities where caused by circumstances that are themselves Force Majeure.
- GCC.19.2. Force Majeure shall not include (i) any event which is caused by the negligence or intentional action of a Party or such Party's Sub-Consultants or agents or employees, nor (ii) any event which a diligent Party could reasonably have been expected both to take into account at the time of the conclusion of this Contract, and to avoid or overcome in the carrying out of its obligations hereunder.



- GCC.19.3. Force Majeure shall not include insufficiency of funds or failure to make any payment required hereunder.
- GCC.19.4. The failure of a Party to fulfil any of its obligations hereunder shall not be considered to be a breach of, or default under, this Contract insofar as such inability arises from an event of Force Majeure, provided that the Party affected by such an event has taken all reasonable precautions, due care and reasonable alternative measures, all with the objective of carrying out the terms and conditions of this Contract.
- GCC.19.5. Measures to be taken:
- GCC.19.5.1. A Party affected by an event of Force Majeure shall continue to perform its obligations under the Contract as far as is reasonably practical, and shall take all reasonable measures to minimize the consequences of any event of Force Majeure.
- GCC.19.5.2. A Party affected by an event of Force Majeure shall notify the other Party of such event as soon as possible, and in any case not later than fourteen (14) days following the occurrence of such event, providing evidence of the nature and cause of such event, and shall similarly give written notice of the restoration of normal conditions as soon as possible.
- GCC.19.5.3. Any period within which a Party shall, pursuant to this Contract, complete any action or task, shall be extended for a period equal to the time during which such Party was unable to perform such action as a result of Force Majeure.
- GCC.19.5.4. During the period of its inability to perform the Services as a result of an event of Force Majeure, the Consultant, upon instructions by DGPC, shall either:
 - demobilize, in which case the Consultant shall be reimbursed for additional costs they reasonably and necessarily incur, and, if required by DGPC, in reactivating the Services; or
 - b) continue with the Services to the extent possible, in which case the Consultant shall continue to be paid under the terms of this Contract and be reimbursed for additional costs reasonably and necessarily incurred.
- GCC.19.5.5. In the case of disagreement between the Parties as to the existence or extent of Force Majeure, the matter shall be settled according to GCC.47.

GCC.20. Suspension

GCC.20.1. DGPC may, by written notice of suspension to the Consultant, suspend all payments to the Consultant hereunder if the Consultant fails to perform any of its obligations under this Contract, including the carrying out of the Services, provided that such notice of suspension (i) shall specify the nature of the failure, and (ii) shall request the Consultant to remedy such failure within a period not exceeding thirty (30) days after receipt by the Consultant of such notice of suspension. Upon remedying the failure by the Consultant the payments to the Consultant shall be commenced.

GCC.21. Termination

- GCC.21.1. Termination by DGPC
- GCC.21.1.1. DGPC may terminate this Contract in case of the occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs (a) through (g) of this clause. In such an occurrence DGPC shall give not less than thirty (30) days written notice of termination to the Consultant, or sixty (60) days in case of the event referred to in paragraph (g) of this clause.
 - a) If the Consultant fails to remedy a failure in the performance of its obligations hereunder, as specified in a notice of suspension pursuant to GCC.20 hereinabove, within forty five (45) days of receipt of such notice of suspension or within such further period as DGPC may have subsequently approved in writing.



- b) If the Consultant becomes (or, if the Consultant consists of more than one entity, if any of its Members becomes) insolvent or bankrupt or enters into any agreements with its creditors for relief of debt or takes advantage of any law for the benefit of debtors or goes into liquidation or receivership whether compulsory or voluntary.
- c) If the Consultant fails to comply with any final decision reached as a result of arbitration proceedings pursuant to GCC.47 hereof.
- d) If the Consultant, in the judgment of DGPC, has engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practices in competing for or in executing this Contract.
- e) If the Consultant submits to DGPC a false statement which has a material effect on the rights, obligations or interests of DGPC.
- f) If, as the result of Force Majeure, the Consultant is unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a continuous period of not less than sixty (60) days.
- g) If DGPC, in its sole discretion and for any reason whatsoever, decides to terminate this Contract.

GCC.21.2. Termination by Consultant

- GCC.21.2.1. The Consultant may terminate this Contract, by not less than thirty (30) days written notice to DGPC, in case of the occurrence of any of the events specified in paragraphs (a) through (d) of this clause.
 - a) If DGPC fails to pay any money due to the Consultant pursuant to this Contract and not subject to dispute pursuant to GCC.47 hereof within forty-five (45) days after receiving written notice from the Consultant that such payment is overdue.
 - b) If, as the result of Force Majeure, the Consultant is unable to perform a material portion of the Services for a continuous period of not less than sixty (60) days.
 - c) If DGPC fails to comply with any final decision reached as a result of arbitration pursuant to GCC.47 hereof.
 - d) If DGPC is in material breach of its obligations pursuant to this Contract and has not remedied the same within forty-five (45) days (or such longer period as the Consultant may have subsequently approved in writing) following the receipt by DGPC of the Consultant's notice specifying such breach.

GCC.21.3. Cessation of rights and obligations

GCC.21.3.1. Upon termination of this Contract pursuant to GCC.14 or GCC.21 hereof, or upon expiration of this Contract pursuant to GCC.16 hereof, all rights and obligations of the Parties hereunder shall cease, except (i) such rights and obligations as may have accrued on the date of termination or expiration, (ii) the obligation of confidentiality set forth in GCC.28 hereof, (iii) the Consultant's obligation to permit inspection, copying and auditing of its accounts and records set forth in GCC.31 thereof (applicable for only time based contract), and (iv) any right which a Party may have under the Applicable Laws of Bhutan.

GCC.21.4. Cessation of Services

GCC.21.4.1. Upon termination of this Contract by notice of either Party to the other pursuant to GCC.21.1 or GCC.21.2 hereof, the Consultant shall, immediately upon dispatch or receipt of such notice, take all necessary steps to bring the Services to a close in a prompt and orderly manner and shall make every reasonable effort to keep expenditures for this purpose to a minimum. With respect to documents prepared by the Consultant and equipment, vehicles and/or materials furnished by DGPC, the Consultant shall proceed as provided respectively by GCC.34 or GCC.35 hereof.

GCC.21.5. Payment upon Termination



- GCC.21.5.1. Upon termination of this Contract pursuant to GCC.21.1 or GCC.21.2 hereof, DGPC shall make the following payments to the Consultant:
 - a) remuneration pursuant to GCC.45.1 hereof for Services satisfactorily performed prior to the effective date of termination, and reimbursable expenditures pursuant to GCC.45.1 hereof for expenditures actually incurred prior to the effective date of termination; and
 - b) except in the case of termination pursuant to paragraphs (a) through (e) of GCC.21.1 hereof, reimbursement of any reasonable cost incidental to the prompt and orderly termination of this Contract including the cost of the return travel of the Personnel.
- GCC.21.6. Disputes about events of Termination
- GCC.21.6.1. If either Party disputes whether an event specified in paragraphs (a) through (f) of GCC.21.1 or in GCC.21.2 hereof has occurred, such Party may, within forty-five (45) days after receipt of notice of termination from the other Party, refer the matter for settlement through arbitration under GCC.47 hereof, and this Contract shall not be terminated on account of such event except in accordance with the terms of any resulting arbitral award.

GCC.22. Standard of Performance

GCC.22.1. The Consultant shall perform the Services and carry out its obligations hereunder with all due diligence, efficiency and economy, in accordance with generally accepted professional standards and practices, and shall observe sound management practices, and employ appropriate technology and safe and effective equipment, machinery, materials and methods. The Consultant shall always act, in respect of any matter relating to this Contract or to the Services, as faithful adviser to DGPC, and shall at all times support and safeguard DGPC's legitimate interests in any dealings with Sub-Consultants or Third Parties.

GCC.23. Law governing Services

GCC.23.1. The Consultant shall perform the Services in accordance with the Applicable Laws of Bhutan and shall take all practicable steps to ensure that any Sub-Consultants, as well as the Personnel of the Consultant and any Sub-Consultants, comply with the said Applicable Laws. DGPC shall notify the Consultant in writing of relevant local customs, and the Consultant shall, after such notification, respect such customs.

GCC.24. Conflict of Interest

GCC.24.1. The Consultant shall hold DGPC's interests paramount, without any consideration for future work, and strictly avoid conflict with other assignments or its own corporate interests.

GCC.25. Consultant not to benefit from Commissions, Discounts, etc.

- GCC.25.1. The payment of the Consultant pursuant to GCC.45 hereof shall constitute the Consultant's only payment in connection with this Contract and, subject to GCC.26 hereof, the Consultant shall not accept for its own benefit any trade commission, discount or similar payment in connection with activities pursuant to this Contract or in the discharge of its obligations hereunder, and the Consultant shall use its best efforts to ensure that any Sub-Consultants, as well as the Personnel and agents of either of them, similarly shall not receive any such additional payment.
- GCC.25.2. Furthermore, if the Consultant, as part of the Services, has the responsibility of advising DGPC on the procurement of goods, works or services, the Consultant shall comply with the applicable procurement guidelines, and shall at all times exercise such responsibility in the best interests of DGPC. Any discounts or commissions obtained by the Consultant in the exercise of such procurement responsibility shall be for the account of DGPC.



GCC.26. Consultants and Affiliates not to engage in certain activities

GCC.26.1. The Consultant agrees that, during the term of this Contract and after its termination, the Consultant and any entity affiliated with the Consultant, as well as any Sub-Consultants and any entity affiliated with such Sub-Consultants, shall be disqualified from providing goods, works or services (other than consulting services) resulting from or directly related to the Consultant's Services for the preparation or implementation of the project.

GCC.27. Prohibition of conflicting activities

GCC.27.1. The Consultant shall not engage, and shall cause its Personnel as well as its Sub-Consultants and their Personnel not to engage, either directly or indirectly, in any business or professional activities that would conflict with the activities assigned to them under this Contract.

GCC.28. Confidentiality

GCC.28.1. Except with the prior written consent of DGPC, the Consultant and the Personnel shall not at any time communicate to any person or entity any confidential information acquired in the course of the Services, nor shall the Consultant and the Personnel make public the recommendations formulated in the course of, or as a result of, the Services.

GCC.29. Liability of the Consultant

GCC.29.1. Subject to additional provisions, if any, set forth in the SCC, the Consultant's liability under this Contract shall be governed by the Applicable Laws of Bhutan.

GCC.30. Insurance

GCC.30.1. The Consultant (i) shall take out and maintain, and shall cause any Sub-Consultants to take out and maintain, at their (or the Sub-Consultants', as the case may be) own cost but on terms and conditions approved by DGPC, insurance against the risks, and for the coverage specified in the SCC, and (ii) at DGPC's request, shall provide evidence to DGPC showing that such insurance has been taken out and maintained and that the current premiums thereof have been paid.

GCC.31. Accounting, Inspection and Auditing for time based Contracts

GCC.31.1. The Consultant (i) shall keep accurate and systematic accounts and records in respect of the Services hereunder, in accordance with internationally accepted accounting principles and in such form and detail as will clearly identify all relevant time charges and costs, and the bases thereof, and (ii) shall periodically permit DGPC or its designated representative, for a period of up to five (5) years from expiration or termination of this Contract, to inspect the same and make copies thereof as well as to have them audited by auditors appointed by DGPC.

GCC.32. Actions requiring prior approval

- GCC.32.1. The Consultant shall obtain DGPC's prior approval in writing before taking any of the following actions:
 - a) Any change or addition to the Personnel listed in Appendix C of Appendices.
 - b) Subcontracts: the Consultant may subcontract work relating to the Services to an extent and with such experts and entities as may be approved in advance by DGPC. Notwithstanding such approval, the Consultant shall retain full responsibility for the Services. In the event that any Sub-Consultants are found by DGPC to be incompetent or incapable in discharging their assigned duties, DGPC may request the Consultant to provide a replacement, with qualifications and experience acceptable to DGPC, or to resume the performance of the Services itself.
 - c) Any other action that may be specified in the SCC.



GCC.33. Reporting Obligations

GCC.33.1. The Consultant shall submit to DGPC the reports and documents specified in Appendix B of Appendices hereto, in the form, in the numbers and within the time periods set forth in the said Appendix. Final reports shall be delivered on CD ROM in addition to the hard copies specified in the said Appendix.

GCC.34. Documents prepared by Consultants

All plans, drawings, specifications, designs, reports, other documents and software prepared by the Consultant for DGPC under this Contract shall become and remain the property of DGPC, and the Consultant shall, not later than upon termination or expiration of this Contract, deliver all such documents to DGPC, together with a detailed inventory thereof. The Consultant may retain a copy of such documents and software, and use such software for its own use with prior written approval of DGPC. If license agreements are necessary or appropriate between the Consultant and third parties for the purposes of development of any such computer programs, the Consultant shall obtain DGPC's prior written approval to such agreements, and DGPC shall be entitled at its discretion to require recovery of the expenses related to the development of the program(s) concerned. Other restrictions about the future use of these documents and software, if any, shall be specified in the SCC.

GCC.35. Equipment, vehicles and materials provided by DGPC

GCC.35.1. Equipment, vehicles and materials made available to the Consultant by DGPC, or purchased by the Consultant wholly or partly with funds provided by DGPC, shall be the property of DGPC and shall be marked accordingly. Upon termination or expiration of this Contract, the Consultant shall make available to DGPC an inventory of such equipment, vehicles and materials and shall dispose of such equipment and materials in accordance with DGPC's instructions. While in possession of such equipment, vehicles and materials, the Consultant, unless otherwise instructed by DGPC in writing, shall insure them at the expense of DGPC in an amount equal to their full replacement value.

GCC.36. Equipment and materials provided by the Consultant

GCC.36.1. Equipment or materials brought into Bhutan by the Consultant and the Personnel and used either for the Project or personal use shall remain the property of the Consultant or the Personnel concerned, as applicable.

GCC.37. Consultant's Personnel and Sub-consultants

- GCC.37.1. The Consultant shall employ and provide such qualified and experienced Personnel and Sub-Consultants as are required to carry out the Services.
- GCC.37.2. The title, agreed job description, minimum qualification and estimated period of engagement in the carrying out of the Services of each of the Consultant's Key Personnel are described in Appendix C of Appendices. If any of the Key Personnel has already been approved by DGPC, his/her name is to be listed as well.

GCC.37.3. This clause GCC.37.3 is applicable only for Time-Based Contracts

- GCC.37.3.1. In order to comply with the provisions of GCC.22 hereof, adjustments with respect to the estimated periods of engagement of Key Personnel set forth in Appendix C of Appendices may be made by the Consultant by written notice to DGPC, provided (i) that such adjustments shall not alter the originally estimated period of engagement of any individual by more than 10% or one week, whichever is larger, and (ii) that the aggregate of such adjustments shall not cause payments under this Contract to exceed the ceilings set forth in GCC.45.1.1(b) of this Contract. Any other such adjustments shall only be made with the DGPC's written approval.
- GCC.37.3.2. If additional work is required beyond the scope of the Services specified in Appendix A of Appendices, the estimated periods of engagement of Key Personnel set forth in



Appendix C of Appendices may be increased by agreement in writing between DGPC and the Consultant. In case payments under this Contract exceed the ceilings set forth in GCC.45.1.1 (b) of this Contract, this will be explicitly mentioned in the agreement.

GCC.38. Approval of Personnel

GCC.38.1. The Key Personnel and Sub-Consultants listed by title as well as by name in Appendix C of Appendices are hereby approved by DGPC. In respect of other Personnel which the Consultant proposes to use in carrying out the Services, the Consultant shall submit to DGPC for review and approval a copy of their Curricula Vitae (CVs). If DGPC does not object in writing (stating the reasons for the objection) within twenty-one (21) days from the date of receipt of such CVs, such Personnel shall be deemed to have been approved by DGPC.

GCC.39. Working hours, overtime, leave, etc.

This clause GCC.39 is applicable only for Time-Based Contracts.

- GCC.39.1. Working hours and holidays for Key Personnel are set forth in Appendix C of Appendices hereto. To account for travel time, Foreign Personnel carrying out Services inside Bhutan shall be deemed to have commenced or finished work in respect of the Services such number of days before their arrival in or after their departure from Bhutan as is specified in Appendix C of Appendices hereto.
- GCC.39.2. The Key Personnel shall not be entitled to be paid for overtime nor to take paid sick leave or vacation leave. The Consultant's remuneration shall be deemed to cover these items. All leave to be allowed to the Personnel is included in the staff-months of service set forth in Appendix C of Appendices.

GCC.40. Removal and/or Replacement of Personnel

- GCC.40.1. Except as DGPC may otherwise agree, no changes shall be made in the Personnel. If, for any reason beyond the reasonable control of the Consultant, such as retirement, death, medical incapacity, among others, it becomes necessary to replace any of the Personnel, the Consultant shall forthwith provide as a replacement a person of equivalent or better qualifications.
- GCC.40.2. If DGPC (i) finds that any of the Personnel has committed serious misconduct or has been charged with having committed a criminal action, or (ii) has reasonable cause to be dissatisfied with the performance of any of the Personnel, then the Consultant shall, at DGPC's written request specifying the grounds therefore, forthwith provide as a replacement a person with qualifications and experience acceptable to DGPC.
- GCC.40.3. (This clause GCC.40.3 is applicable for only Time-Based Contracts) Any of the Personnel provided as a replacement under GCC.40.1 and GCC.40.2 above, as well as any reimbursable expenditure (including expenditures due to the number of eligible dependents) the Consultant may wish to claim as a result of such replacement, shall be subject to prior written approval by DGPC. The rate of remuneration applicable to a replacement person will be obtained by multiplying the rate of remuneration applicable to the replaced person by the ratio between the monthly salary effectively to be paid to the replacement person and the average salary effectively paid to the replaced person in the period six months prior to the date of replacement. Except as DGPC may otherwise agree, (i) the Consultant shall bear all additional travel and other costs arising out of or incidental to any removal and/or replacement, and (ii) the remuneration to be paid for any of the Personnel provided as a replacement shall not exceed the remuneration which would have been payable to the Personnel replaced.
- GCC.40.4. In case of Lump-Sum Contracts, the above clause GCC.40.3 shall NOT be applicable. In Lump-Sum Contacts, the Consultant shall have no claim for additional costs arising out of or incidental to any removal and/or replacement of Personnel.



GCC.41. Resident Project Manager

GCC.41.1. If required by the SCC, the Consultant shall ensure that at all times during the Consultant's performance of the Services in Bhutan a resident project manager, acceptable to DGPC, shall take charge of the performance of such Services.

GCC.42. DGPC's Obligations

- GCC.42.1. Unless otherwise specified in the SCC, DGPC shall use its best efforts to ensure that the Government shall:
 - a) Provide the Consultant, Sub-Consultants and Personnel with work permits and such other documents as shall be necessary to enable the Consultant, Sub-Consultants or Personnel to perform the Services.
 - b) Arrange for the Personnel and, if appropriate, their eligible dependents to be provided promptly with all necessary entry and exit visas, residence permits, exchange permits and any other documents required for their stay in Bhutan.
 - c) Facilitate prompt clearance through customs of any property required for the Services and of the personal effects of the Personnel and their eligible dependents.
 - d) Issue to officials, agents and representatives of the Government all such instructions as may be necessary or appropriate for the prompt and effective implementation of the Services.
 - e) Exempt the Consultant and the Personnel and any Sub-Consultants employed by the Consultant for the Services from any requirement to register or obtain any permit to practice their profession or to establish themselves either individually or as a corporate entity according to the Applicable Laws of Bhutan.
 - f) Grant to the Consultant, any Sub-Consultants and the Personnel of either of them the privilege, pursuant to the Applicable Laws of Bhutan, of bringing into Bhutan reasonable amounts of foreign currency for the purposes of the Services or for the personal use of the Personnel and their dependents and of withdrawing any such amounts as may be earned therein by the Personnel in the execution of the Services.
 - g) Provide to the Consultant, Sub-Consultants and Personnel any such other assistance as may be specified in the SCC.

GCC.43. Change in applicable laws

GCC.43.1. If, after the date of this Contract, there is any change in the Applicable Laws of Bhutan with respect to taxes and duties which increases or decreases the cost incurred by the Consultant in performing the Services, then the remuneration and reimbursable expenses otherwise payable to the Consultant under this Contract shall be increased or decreased accordingly by agreement between the Parties hereto, and corresponding adjustments shall be made to the ceiling amounts specified in GCC.45.1.1.

GCC.44. Services, Facilities and Property of DGPC

- GCC.44.1. DGPC shall make available to the Consultant and the Personnel, for the purposes of the Services and free of any charge, the services, facilities and property described in Appendix F of Appendices at the times and in the manner specified in the said Appendix F of Appendices.
- GCC.44.2. In case such services, facilities and property are not be made available to the Consultant as and when specified in Appendix F of Appendices, the Parties shall agree on (i) any time extension that it may be appropriate to grant to the Consultant for the performance of the Services, (ii) the manner in which the Consultant shall procure any such services, facilities and property from other sources, and (iii) the additional payments, if any, to be made to the Consultant as a result thereof pursuant to GCC.45.1.1.



GCC.45. Payments

GCC.45.1. **Payment clauses in case of Time-Based Contracts**. (This clause GCC.45.1 will **NOT** be applicable for Lump-Sum Contracts.)

GCC.45.1.1. Cost estimates and Ceiling Amount

- a) An estimate of the cost of the Services payable in foreign currency is set forth in SCC. An estimate of the cost of the Services payable in local currency is set forth in SCC.
- b) Except as may be otherwise agreed under GCC.18 and subject to GCC.45.1.1(c), payments under this Contract shall not exceed the ceilings in foreign currency and in local currency specified in the SCC.
- c) Notwithstanding GCC.45.1.1(b) hereof if, pursuant to any of GCC.43 or GCC.44 hereof, the Parties shall agree that additional payments in local and/or foreign currency, as the case may be, shall be made to the Consultant in order to cover any necessary additional expenditures not envisaged in the cost estimates referred to in GCC.45.1.1(a) above, the ceiling or ceilings, as the case may be, set forth in GCC.45.1.1(b) above shall be increased by the amount or amounts, as the case may be, of any such additional payments.

GCC.45.1.2. Remuneration and Reimbursable expenses

- a) Subject to the ceilings specified in GCC.45.1.1 (b) hereof, DGPC shall pay to the Consultant (i) remuneration as set forth in GCC.45.1.2 (b) hereunder, and (ii) reimbursable expenses as set forth in GCC.45.1.2 (c) hereunder. Unless otherwise specified in the SCC, said remuneration shall be fixed for the duration of the Contract.
- b) Payment for the Personnel shall be determined on the basis of time actually spent by such Personnel in the performance of the Services after the date determined in accordance with GCC.15 and SCC (or such other date as the Parties shall agree in writing), at the rates referred to in SCC, and subject to price adjustment, if any, specified in SCC.
- c) Reimbursable expenses actually and reasonably incurred by the Consultant in the performance of the Services, as specified in SCC.
- d) Any rates specified for Personnel not yet appointed shall be provisional and shall be subject to revision, with the written approval of DGPC, once the applicable salaries and allowances are known.
- e) Payments for periods of less than one month shall be calculated on an hourly basis for actual time spent in the Consultant's home office and directly attributable to the Services (one hour being equivalent to 1/176th of a month or twenty-two (22) days being equal to one month) and on a calendar-day basis for time spent away from home office (one day being equivalent to 1/30th of a month).

GCC.45.1.3. Currency of Payment

Foreign currency payments shall be made in the currency or currencies specified in the SCC, and local currency payments shall be made in Bhutanese Ngultrum (BTN).

GCC.45.1.4. Mode of billing and payment

Billings and payments in respect of the Services shall be made as follows:

a) Within the number of days after the Effective Date specified in the SCC, DGPC shall cause to be paid to the Consultant advance payments in foreign currency and in Bhutanese Ngultrum (BTN) as specified in the SCC. When the SCC indicate advance payment, this will be due after provision by the Consultant to DGPC of an advance payment guarantee acceptable to DGPC in an amount (or amounts) and in



- a currency (or currencies) specified in the SCC. Such guarantee shall (i) remain effective until the advance payment has been fully set off, and (ii) be in the form set forth in Appendix G of Appendices hereto, or in such other form as DGPC shall have approved in writing. The advance payments will be set off by DGPC in equal instalments against the statements for the number of months of the Services specified in the SCC until said advance payments have been fully set off.
- b) As soon as practicable and not later than fifteen (15) days after the end of each calendar month during the period of the Services, or after the end of each time interval otherwise indicated in the SCC, the Consultant shall submit to DGPC, in duplicate, itemized statements, accompanied by copies of invoices, vouchers and other appropriate supporting materials, of the amounts payable pursuant to GCC.45.1.3 and GCC.45.1.4 for such month, or any other period indicated in the SCC. Separate statements shall be submitted in respect of amounts payable in foreign currency and in local currency. Each statement shall distinguish that portion of the total eligible costs which pertains to remuneration from that portion and which pertains to reimbursable expenses.
- c) DGPC shall pay the Consultant's statements within thirty (30) days after the receipt by DGPC of such statements with supporting documents. Only such portion of a statement that is not satisfactorily supported may be withheld from payment. Should any discrepancy be found to exist between actual payment and costs authorized to be incurred by the Consultant, DGPC may add or subtract the difference from any subsequent payments. Interest at the annual rate specified in the SCC shall become payable as from the above due date on any amount due by, but not paid on, such due date.
- The final payment under this Clause shall be made only after the final report and a final statement, identified as such, shall have been submitted by the Consultant and approved as satisfactory by DGPC. The Services shall be deemed completed and finally accepted by DGPC and the final report and final statement shall be deemed approved by DGPC as satisfactory ninety (90) days after receipt of the final report and final statement by DGPC unless DGPC, within such ninety (90) day period, gives written notice to the Consultant specifying in detail deficiencies in the Services, the final report or final statement. The Consultant shall thereupon promptly make any necessary corrections, and thereafter the foregoing process shall be repeated. Any amount which DGPC has paid or caused to be paid in accordance with this Clause in excess of the amounts actually payable in accordance with the provisions of this Contract shall be reimbursed by the Consultant to DGPC within thirty (30) days after receipt by the Consultant of notice thereof. Any such claim by DGPC for reimbursement must be made within twelve (12) calendar months after receipt by DGPC of a final report and a final statement approved by DGPC in accordance with the above.
- e) All payments under this Contract shall be made to the accounts of the Consultant specified in the SCC.
- f) Payments in respect of remuneration or reimbursable expenses which exceed the cost estimates for these items as set forth in Appendix D and E of Appendices may be charged to the respective contingencies provided for foreign and local currencies only if such expenditures were approved by DGPC prior to being incurred.
- g) With the exception of the final payment under (d) above, payments do not constitute acceptance of the Services nor relieve the Consultant of any obligations hereunder.
- GCC.45.2. Payment clauses in case of Lump-Sum Contracts. (This clause GCC.45.2 will **NOT** be applicable for Time-Based Contracts.)

GCC.45.2.1. Lump-Sum Payment



The total payment due to the Consultant shall not exceed the Contract Price which is an all-inclusive fixed lump-sum covering all costs required to carry out the Services described in Appendix A of Appendices. Except as provided in GCC.43 and GCC.44.2, if the Parties have agreed to additional payments in accordance with GCC.18.

GCC.45.2.2. Payment for additional services

For the purpose of determining the remuneration due for additional services as may be agreed under GCC.18, a breakdown of the lump-sum price is provided in Appendices D and E of Appendices.

GCC.45.2.3. Terms and conditions of payment

Payments will be made to the account(s) of the Consultant and according to the payment schedule stated in the SCC. Unless otherwise stated in the SCC, the first payment shall be made against the provision by the Consultant of an advance payment guarantee for the same amount, and shall be valid for the period stated in the SCC. Such guarantee shall be in the form set forth in Form C, or in such other form as DGPC shall have approved in writing. Any other payment shall be made after the conditions listed in the SCC for such payment have been met, and the Consultant has submitted an invoice to DGPC specifying the amount due.

GCC.45.2.4. Interest on delayed payments

If DGPC has delayed payments beyond fifteen (15) days after the due date stated in the SCC, interest shall be paid to the Consultant for each day of delay at the rate stated in the SCC.

GCC.46. Fairness and Good Faith

- GCC.46.1. The Parties undertake to act in good faith with respect to each other's rights under this Contract and to adopt all reasonable measures to ensure the realization of the objectives of this Contract.
- GCC.46.2. The Parties recognize that it is impractical in this Contract to provide for every contingency which may arise during the life of the Contract, and the Parties hereby agree that it is their intention that this Contract shall operate fairly as between them, and without detriment to the interest of either of them, and that, if during the term of this Contract either Party believes that this Contract is operating unfairly, the Parties will use their best efforts to agree on such action as may be necessary to remove the cause or causes of such unfairness, but no failure to agree on any action pursuant to this clause shall give rise to a dispute subject to arbitration in accordance with GCC.47 hereof.

GCC.47. Settlement of Disputes

GCC.47.1. Adjudicator

- GCC.47.1.1. If any dispute of any kind whatsoever shall arise between DGPC and the Consultant in connection with or arising out of the Contract, including without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, any question regarding its existence, validity or termination, or the execution of the Works— whether during the progress of the Works or after their completion and whether before or after the termination, abandonment or breach of the Contract— the Parties shall seek to resolve any such dispute or difference by mutual consultation. If the Parties fail to resolve such a dispute or difference by mutual consultation, then the dispute shall be referred in writing by either Party to the Adjudicator, with a copy to the other Party.
- GCC.47.1.2. The Adjudicator shall be jointly appointed by DGPC and the Contractor under the Contract. Failing agreement between the two within thirty (30) days, the Adjudicator shall be appointed under the Contract on the request of either Party by the Appointing Authority specified in the SCC. The Adjudicator so appointed shall be by mutual consent.



- GCC.47.1.3. The Adjudicator shall give its decision in writing to both Parties within thirty (30) days of a dispute being referred to it. If the Adjudicator has done so, and no notice of intention to commence arbitration has been given by either DGPC or the Consultant within fifty-six (56) days of such reference, the decision shall become final and binding upon DGPC and the Consultant. Any decision that has become final and binding shall be implemented by the Parties forthwith.
- GCC.47.1.4. Should the Adjudicator resign or die, or should DGPC and the Consultant agree that the Adjudicator is not fulfilling its functions in accordance with the provisions of the Contract; another Adjudicator shall be appointed in the same manner as provided in GCC.47.1.2.
- GCC.47.1.5. The Adjudicator shall be paid fee plus expenditures incurred in the execution of its duties as Adjudicator under the Contract as specified in the SCC. These costs shall be divided equally between DGPC and the Consultant.
- GCC.47.2. Arbitration
- GCC.47.2.1. If either DGPC or the Consultant is dissatisfied with the Adjudicator's decision, or if the Adjudicator fails to give a decision within forty-five (45) days of a dispute being referred to it, then either DGPC or the Consultant may, within sixty(60) days of such reference, give notice to the other Party, with a copy for information to the Adjudicator, of its intention to commence arbitration, as hereinafter provided, as to the matter in dispute, and no arbitration in respect of this matter may be commenced unless such notice is given.
- GCC.47.2.2. Any dispute, in respect of which a notice of intention to commence arbitration has been given, in accordance with GCC.47.2.1, shall be finally settled by arbitration. Arbitration may be commenced prior to or after completion of the Works.
- GCC.47.2.3. Arbitration proceedings shall be conducted:
 - a) in accordance with the rules of procedure designated in the SCC;
 - b) in the place designated in the SCC; and
 - c) in the language in which this Contract has been executed.
- GCC.47.2.4. The arbitrators shall also decide on the cost of arbitration and allocation thereof. The expenses incurred by each Party in connection with the preparation and presentation of its case prior to, during and after the arbitration proceedings shall however be borne by the respective Party.
- GCC.47.3. Notwithstanding any reference to the Adjudicator or arbitration herein:
 - a) the Parties shall continue to perform their respective obligations under the Contract unless they otherwise agree; and
 - b) DGPC shall pay the Consultant any monies due to it.
- GCC.47.4. The arbitration award shall be final on the Parties who shall be deemed to have accepted to carry out the resulting award without delay and to have waived their right to any form of appeal insofar as such waiver can validly be made.



SECTION VI – SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT



SECTION VI - SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

The following Special Conditions of Contract (SCC) shall supplement and/or amend the General Conditions of Contract (GCC). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in the GCC.

GCC Clause Reference	Particulars		
GCC.3.1	Contract shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the Kingdom of Bhutan.		
GCC.6.1 and	For any notices or request, the addresses are:		
GCC.6.2	DGPC:		
	Head, Druk Green Consultancy Druk Green Power Corporation Limited Post Box No. 1351, Motithang, Thimphu, Bhutan Tel: +975-2-339871 Email: c.tenzin1859@drukgreen.bt		
	Consultant Address:		
	Attention: Facsimile:		
	E-mail (where permitted):		
GCC.7.1	Location where the services will be performed is: As specified in the TOR		
GCC.8.1	The Member in Charge is: Not Applicable		
GCC.9.1 The Authorized Representatives are:			
	Both parties shall notify after signing of the contract.		
GCC.10.1	Whether Contract Performance Guarantee (CPG) needs to be provided for the Contract: Yes		
	The terms of the CPG will be as under:		
	1. Within fifteen (15) days from the date of Letter of Award, the successful Bidder shall furnish to the DGPC, a Performance Security in the form of Bank Guarantee issued by a Financial Institute of Bhutan or any Foreign bank acceptable and enforceable in any financial institution in Bhutan for an amount of 10% (ten per cent) of the Contract Price in accordance with the conditions of the Contract.		
	2. The format of the Bank Guarantee is provided in Form C of this document.		
	The Performance security shall be valid thirty (30) days beyond completion period. If the work gets delayed, the performance security shall be extended by such period of time without any cost to DGPC.		
GCC.13.1	The effective time period shall be: from the date of issuance of Letter of Award		
GCC.14.1	Termination for failure to become effective shall be: 30 days from the date of issuance of Letter of Award		
GCC.15.1	The commencement of service shall be: from the date of issuance of Letter of Award		



GCC Clause	Particulars							
Reference								
GCC.16.1	The time period for expiration of contract shall be 50 days from the date of issuance of Letter of Award							
GCC.16.2	Liquidated Damages: Applicable as under:							
	If the Consultant fails to complete the work as per the scope that would adversely affect the project schedule for want of deliverables from the Consultant, the DGPC shall serve notice for such delays to the Consultant. Without prejudice to its other remedies under the Contract, DGPC shall levy liquidated damages at the rate of 0.3% of the Executed Price for delay of each day subject to maximum of 10% of the Executed Price .							
GCC.29.1	Limitation of the Consultant's Liability towards DGPC:							
	 a) Except in case of gross negligence or wilful misconduct on the part of the Consultant or on the part of any person or firm acting on behalf of the Consultant in carrying out the Services, the Consultant, with respect to damage caused by the Consultant to DGPC's property, shall not be liable to DGPC: 							
	i. for any indirect or consequential loss or damage; and							
	ii. for any direct loss or damage that exceeds by 1.1 times the total value of the Contract.							
	b) This limitation of liability shall not affect the Consultant's liability, if any, for damage to Third Parties caused by the Consultant or any person or firm acting on behalf of the Consultant in carrying out the Services.							
GCC.30.1	The risks and the coverage shall be as follows:							
	a) Professional liability insurance with a minimum coverage of One (1) times of Contract Price;							
	b) Third Party motor vehicle liability insurance in respect of motor vehicles operated in Bhutan by the Consultant or its Experts or Sub-consultants, with a minimum coverage in accordance with the applicable laws in Bhutan;							
	c) Employer's liability and workers' compensation insurance in respect of the Personnel of the Consultant and of any Sub-Consultants, in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Applicable Laws of Bhutan, as well as, with respect to such Personnel, any such life, health, accident, travel or other insurance as may be appropriate; and							
	d) Insurance against loss of or damage to (i) equipment purchased in whole or in part with funds provided under this Contract, (ii) the Consultant's property used in the performance of the Services, and (iii) any documents prepared by the Consultant in the performance of the Services.							
GCC.34.1	The Consultant shall not use these documents and software for purposes unrelated to this Contract without the prior written approval of DGPC.							
GCC.41.1	Resident Project Manager: Not required.							
GCC.42.1 (g)	DGPC shall provide to the Consultant, Sub-Consultants and Personnel any such other assistance: Refer TOR							
GCC.45.1.3	The currency of payment shall be: Bhutanese Ngultrum							



GCC Clause Reference	Particulars
Keierence	
GCC.45.2.3	Payments shall be made according to the following schedule:
	i. Fifteen (15) percent of the lump-sum amount shall be paid upon submission of the inception report.
	ii. Thirty (30) percent of the lump-sum amount shall be paid upon submission of all the interim reports.
	iii. Thirty (30) percent of the lump-sum amount shall be paid upon submission of the draft final report.
	iv. Twenty-five (25) percent of the lump-sum amount shall be paid upon submission of the final report.
	The final payment shall be released upon approval of final report and upon fulfilment of any obligation in the Contract Agreement.
000 15 0 1	
GCC.45.2.4	Interest on delayed payments: Not Applicable
GCC.47.2.3 (a)	Institution whose arbitration procedures shall be used:
and (b)	All disputes arising in connection with the present Contract shall be finally resolved by arbitration in accordance with the rules and procedures of the Alternative Dispute Resolution Act of Bhutan 2013.



SECTION VII – TERMS OF REFERENCE



TERMS OF REFERENCE

1. BACKGROUND

Gamri II Hydropower Project (HPP) lies in the very far East of Bhutan falling under Sakteng Dungkhag in Trashigang Dzongkhag. Gamri originates within Bhutan and flows East to West joining Drangmechhu which flows South-Westerly from the Indian State of Arunachal Pradesh. The two stages of Gamri were identified during Power System Master Plan (PSMP) and the Reconnaissance Study Level envisaged high potential to establish best techno-economic proposal for development of hydropower project in the river Gamri. Consequently, Pre-Feasibility Study (PFS) for both Gamri I and II were completed in late 2014 followed by completion of Feasibility Study (FS) of Gamri I and Bamukparongchhu Integrated HPP in late 2023.

As part of FS of Gamri II HPP, detail geology and geotechnical investigation works are planned to be completed by 2024. The project as per PFS has been planned to be developed as a run-of-the river scheme with the provision of diurnal peaking. All the project components lie along the right bank of the river.

2. PROJECT LOCATION AND ACCESSIBILITY

Gamri II HPP proposed approximately 450 m downstream of the confluence of Gamri and Bamukparongchhu at El. 2320 m falls under Sakteng Dungkhag in Trashigang Dzongkhag. Located approximately 60 Km from Trashigang town, the intake area can be accessed via foot track of approximately 1 Km from Thrakthri ECR. The powerhouse on the other hand is located approximately 50 Km far from Trashigang town and it can be accessed via foot track of about 150 m from the road takeoff near Dhak bridge.

The project traps water discharged from Tail Race Channel of Gamri I which is collected via a collection chamber located at Thrakthri followed by Head Race Tunnel alignment till Dhak village where the powerhouse is located. The major settlement around the project area is in Thakthri and Dhak village with few pasture lands in its vicinity. It is envisaged to generate 85 MW of electricity.

3. PROJECT GEOLOGY

The project area falls in the Chekha formation of Ordovician or younger age and the rock types encountered are Schist, Quartzite and Limestone with basic sills. The lowermost unit of Chekha Formation comprises highly puckered and crumpled Garnetiferous Sericitic Schist, as reported to have been occurring in near Ramjar and in the southern limb of syncline near Bartsham and Bedung village. Biotite-Chlorite-Garnet schist is exposed along the paths between Wange La (Bedung) and Wangse La (Bartsham) where they are reported to be resting over the Sericite Schist unit. A thin lenticular occurrence of white crystalline Limestone is intercalation in the Sericite Schist in Bedung and also on the right bank of Bamukparong towards the north of Sakteng. The exposures of grayish white, fine grained Garnet bearing Quartzite associated with Schist were observed between Sonapang and Thrakthi.

4. OBJECTIVE OF INVESTIGATION

The Himalayan fold-thrust belt represents an active mountain belt where sediments that once draped the northern margin of India have been deformed and translated into several East-West striking and North-dipping thrust sheets. Rocks that we see in the Himalaya including Bhutan have been experiencing both polyphase deformation and metamorphism. Thus, in order to unearth various geologic features including depositional environment, tectono-stratigraphy, structural geology at meso- and macro-scale and pressure-temperature conditions of rock units and piece them together in order to understand the history, appropriate skills and qualifications are of paramount importance.

To undertake this project professionally, appropriate skills in field mapping (lithology and structures), lithologic correlations, structural interpretation and ability to connect structural geology with metamorphism and geomorphology are deemed necessary. In particular, the lineament mapping is proposed to find out if there are any negative implications of geologic structures such as the faults, folds, joints, shear zones, etc. on the hydropower features such as the dam, tunnels and powerhouse.

5. SCOPE OF INVESTIGATION

The scope of work includes carrying out Lineament Mapping of the project site as shown in **Figure 1** at the larger scale of 1:10,000 and the main works covered under this contract shall include but not limited to the following:



Figure 1: Area of Interest for Lineament Mapping

5.1 Desktop Study

- In this component, an aerial reconnaissance study of the proposed area in the context of local and regional geologic structures should be done by reviewing geologic information published either by the Geological Survey of India (GSI), Geological Survey of Bhutan (GSB) or other international geoscientific organizations.
- This should be followed by delineation of lineaments from high spatial and spectral resolutions satellite
 images preferably ASTER/Landsat, aerial photos and Digital Elevation Models (DEMs) using remote
 sensing techniques. DEMs and satellite images should be enhanced and analyzed using ENVI, ArcGIS,
 PCI Geomatica etc... with the aim of extracting lineaments.
- The extent of the study area is as given below:
 - 1. 1:10,000 scale mapping of quad angle at the Project area (35 sq.km)



5.2 Field Investigation

The following components shall be carried out and completed.

1. Ground Truthing

• Ground truthing of important and major structures/lineaments/faults, thrusts, etc. identified in and around the project area through aerial photographs and remote sensing studies.

2. Lithologic and Structural mapping

• Lineament mapping on 1:10,000 scale should be done in and around the project area concurrent with lithologic mapping. All structures mapped should be correlated to the regional geologic structures (e.g., fault/shear zone, fold axes, physiographic transitions) along-strike.

3. Geomorphological mapping

- Geomorphologic mapping should be done around the project areas on 1:10,000 scale. This mapping
 will constitute documenting recent landforms such as ridges, valleys, fluvial terraces, alluvium and
 colluvium deposits and knickzones.
- Particular focus has to be given to mapping different levels of fluvial terraces in order to understand the episodes of incision and aggradation.

4. Landslide mapping

• Inventory of landslides in relation to geologic structure (e.g., fault/shear zone) to characterize the slope stability in and around the project areas.

6. MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

- Unless otherwise stated in the Contract, the Contract Price covers all the Consultant's obligations under the Contract and all things necessary for the proper execution and completion of the works and the remedying of any defects.
- Payment shall be made according to the following schedule:
 - v. Fifteen (15) percent of the lump-sum amount shall be paid upon submission of the inception report.
- vi. Thirty (30) percent of the lump-sum amount shall be paid upon submission of the interim reports.
- vii. Thirty (30) percent of the lump-sum amount shall be paid upon submission of the draft final report.
- viii. Twenty-five (25) percent of the lump-sum amount shall be paid upon submission of the final report.
- The final payment shall be released upon approval of final report and upon fulfilment of any obligation in the Contract Agreement.

7. MANPOWER REQUIREMENT AND EXPERIENCES

Table 2: List of manpower required

Personnel	No	Qualification
Geologist	1	Minimum M.Sc. in geology with particular focus on tectonics and structural
		geology



Surveyor	1	• 5 years of work experience in topographical surveying with competency to
		generate contours or maps both in LISCAD as well as AutoCAD or GIS.

8. SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS

8.1 Personal Safety Equipment

• The Contractor shall provide his personnel and employer's representatives and visitors with appropriate personal safety equipment. The use of such equipment shall be mandatory.

8.2 Reporting of Accident

- The Contractor shall maintain an accurate record of, and shall report to the Employer and to the Government's authorities all cases of death, occupational disease or disabling injury to his personals occurred in the performance of their duties or anywhere in the course of their employment for the Works.
- All fatal or serious injuries shall be reported immediately to the Employer and full assistance shall be
 given to the Employer by the Contractor in the investigation of the incident, including submission of
 a comprehensive narrative report.
- Furthermore, other accidental occurrences with serious accident potential such as equipment failures, slides etc, shall likewise be reported immediately.
- The Contractor shall assist and cooperate fully with the Employer in conducting factual accident investigation. All information and data pertinent to investigation of an accident shall be made available to the Employer.

9. DURATION OF THE ASSIGNMENT

• The firm will be given **50 days** to come up with the outputs or deliverables mentioned above, acceptable to the client. The client expects consultant to furnish a detailed work plan with timeline as shown in the table below which acceptable to the client for carrying out and completion of the task as per this ToR.

Table 3: Work Schedule

		Months							
SN	SN Activity		Month 1				Month 2		
		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	
1	Contract signing								
2	Desktop study and submission of inception report								
3	Field verification and submission of final report								
	Total Duration=50 Days								



SECTION VIII - CONTRACT FORMS

- A. Form of Letter of Award
- B. Form of Contract
- C. Form for Performance Security



Form A – FORM OF LETTER OF AWARD

Reference No
Date
To [Name and Address of the Consultant]
Dear Sirs,
This is to notify you that your Bid dated for execution of the
You are hereby requested to furnish Contract Performance Security, in the form detailed in GCC.10 for a amount of[insert amount of performance security]
Failure to submit the Contract Performance Security within the period stipulated above shall constitute ground for the annulment of the award and entail forfeiture of Bid Security.
This letter is being issued to you in duplicate. Please retain one copy for your records and return the othe copy to DGPC after recording on the letter "Accepted Unconditionally" under the signature of th authorised signatory.
Please acknowledge receipt.
Yours faithfully,
Signature
[Name and title of signatory]
[DGPC's address]



Form B – FORM OF CONTRACT

(Text in brackets [] is optional; all notes should be deleted in final text)

This CONTRACT (hereinafter called the "Contract") is made the [day] day of the month of [month], [year], between, on the one hand, [full name of DGPC] (hereinafter called "DGPC") and, on the other hand, [name of Consultant] (hereinafter called the "Consultant").

WHEREAS

- (a) DGPC has requested the Consultant to provide certain consulting services as defined in this Contract (hereinafter called the "Services");
- (b) the Consultant, having represented to DGPC that he has the required professional skills, personnel and technical resources, has agreed to provide the Services on the terms and conditions set forth in this Contract;

NOW THEREFORE the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

- 1. The following documents attached hereto shall be deemed to form an integral part of this Contract:
 - i) Contract Agreement
 - ii) Contract Performance Security
 - iii) Letter of Award
 - iv) Negotiation's Minutes of Meeting
 - v) Special Conditions of Contract
 - vi) General Conditions of Contract
 - vii) Terms of Reference
 - viii) Contractor's Bid Documents
 - ix) Any other documents forming part of Contract
- 2. The mutual rights and obligations of DGPC and the Consultant shall be as set forth in the Contract, in particular:
 - (a) the Consultant shall carry out the Services in accordance with the provisions of the Contract; and
 - (b) DGPC shall make payments to the Consultant in accordance with the provisions of the Contract.
- 3. The Contract amount between DGPC and the Consultant shall be

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Contract to be signed in their respective names as of the day and year first above written.

Sealed and Signed by both parties



Form C – FORM OF PERFORMANCE SECURITY

PROFORMA FOR PERFORMANCE SECURTIY

То	
Whereas (Name of the Consultant) herein a(Name of works) in pursusdatedherein after called t	
a Bank Guarantee by(Nam	you in the Contract that the Consultant shall furnish you with e of the Bank) for the sum of(specify e Consultant's performance obligations in accordance with the
are guarantors and responsible to you, on hin words and figures) and we undertake to p to be in default under the Contract, and wi	the Consultant a guarantee; therefore we hereby affirm that we behalf of the Consultant, up to a total of (amount of guarantee ay you, upon your first written demand declaring the Consultant thout cavil or argument, any sum or sums as specified by you, out your needing to prove or show grounds or reasons for your
The guarantee is valid until	Day of
[NAME OF GUARANTOR]	
(Signature)	_
(Name)	_
Authorized Representative	<u> </u>
Date:	
Address:	



SECTION IX – PERFORMANCE EVALUATION SYSTEM



SECTION VII - PERFORMANCE EVALUATION SYSTEM

1 INTRODUCTION

A consultant performance evaluation is a standardized, systematic and objective assessment of a consultant's performance on a specific project contract. This enables DGPC to judge whether the consultant has performed the work to a high standard on a number of fronts, and whether it is worth engaging them for future projects.

The performance evaluation criteria shall be used by each Project Manager immediately with the commissioning of any services after the award of contract. The consultants shall be evaluated as the project progresses.

2 OBJECTIVES

The main objectives of the performance evaluation of Consultants for services are as follows:

- To adopt a more holistic approach in reviewing overall performance of Consultant;
- To work with Consultant to raise safety and quality standards;
- To encourage an environment of continuous improvement by Consultant;
- To build partnership with Consultant in specific and strategic areas; and
- To have a list of preferred Consultant to be selected for limited bidding process

3 PERFORMANCE EVAULATION SYSTEM (PES)

The assessment of the Consultants shall be done as follows:

SN	Performance Criteria	Weightage
3.1	Scope Management	15%
3.2	Time Management	20%
3.3	Quality Management	30%
3.4	General Assessment	35%
Tota	1	100%

3.1 Scope Management (15%)

SN	Evaluation Criteria	Score	Key	performance	Ren	narks	
			mea	measure			
3.1.1	Commencement	5%	>	Early= 120%	As	per the	contract
			✓	On time=100%	agre	ement	
			✓	Late=0%			
3.1.2	Work Schedule	5%	✓	On time =100%	As	per	contract
				or else 0%	agre	ement	
3.1.3	Resource deployment	5%	✓	Full deployment	As	per	contract
				= 100% or else	agre	ement	
				0%			

3.2. TIME MANAGEMENT (20%)

SN	Evaluation Criteria	Score	Key	performance	Remarks
			measurement		
3.2.1	Meeting Milestones/	5%	~	On time = 100%	To be measured as per
	Deliverables		✓	Delay up to 20%	the work schedule
				= 80%	submitted.
			✓	Beyond 20% =	
				0%	



3.2.2	Submission of revised work schedules	5%	✓	Timely= 100% or else 0%	To be measured based on the written request made by the Project
3.2.3	Timely response to Client's instruction	5%	> > >	100% response = 100%. 80% response = 80%. Less than 80% response = 0%	Manager Calculation will be based on the number of request made by the Project Manager/Project Engineer.
3.2.4	Problem identification and problem solving	5%	y	Timely intimation = 100 % or 0%	Timely intimation resulting in resolving of problems during the contract period.

3.3. QUALITY MANAGEMENT (30%)

SN	Evaluation Criteria	Score	Key performance measurement	Remarks
3.3.1	Compliance to TOR	10%		 ✓ Minor deviations would mean deviations which does not lead to major issues to the project. ✓ Frequent noncompliance would mean noncompliance leading to delays.
3.3.2	Response to Non Compliance, Complaints and Notices	10%	 ✓ 100% response = 100%. ✓ 80% response = 80%. ✓ Less than 80% response = 0% 	Calculation will be based on the number of request made by the Project Manager.
3.3.3	Innovation and alternate option/design solution during the course of work.	5%	✓ Yes = 100% ✓ No=0%	
3.3.4	Overall quality of the design, reports and presentation	10%	✓ Excellent = 100% ✓ Good with comments = 50% ✓ Poor or rejected = 0%	



3.4. GENERAL ASSESSMENT (35%)

SN	Evaluation	Score	Key performance	Remarks
	Criteria		measurement	
3.5.1	Cooperation and Coordination with Employer	4%	✓ Excellent = 100% ✓ Good = 50% ✓ Poor = 0%	To be rated on the promptness of the Contractor on resolution of any issue and on following the guidelines set in the Contract Document. Also on the communication, returning of phone calls or replying of emails.
3.5.2	Personnel Resource Management	5%	✓ Availability of proposed professional = 100% or else 0%	As per the staffing schedule submitted and agreed between both the parties.
3.5.3	Technical Competence	10%	 ✓ Excellent (resolves issues by themselves) = 100% ✓ Good (with discussion with Client) = 50% ✓ Poor (solutions given by the Client) = 0% 	The ability of the consultant to resolve an issue and notifying the Client on the same.
3.5.4	Integrity and Ethical Conduct	4%	✓ Zero written complaints = 100% or else 0%	
3.5.5	Accurate communication	4%	 ✓ Excellent=100% ✓ Good= 80% ✓ Poor = 0% 	An excellent communication would mean returning calls and emails before the day ends.
3.5.6	Trainings and back up services	4%	Survey to be conducted = 100% or else 0%	
3.5.7	Problem Resolution	4%	 ✓ Excellent= 100% ✓ Good (needs to be prompted twice) = 50% ✓ Poor (always needs to prompted) =0 	An excellent Consultant would mean being proactive and providing problem resolution without the need of being prompted.

4 CONSULTANT ASSESSMENT CATEGORY

The Consultants shall be categorized into three categories as under:

Category	Score	Remarks	
A	80-100	✓ Recommended/Preferred Consultants	
В	50-79	 Consultants must be developed; Consider, but with mandatory debriefing on the short comings. 	



С	0-49	✓ Consultants not qualified

5 EVALUATION PERIOD AND DEBARMENT

5.1 Evaluation period

The Performance evaluation shall be carried out after the award of any service till its closure.

5.2 Debarment of Consultants

Based on the assessment of consultants at the closure of each project, all non-performing Consultants shall be referred to the Debarment Committee as per the Debarment Rules 2019 of RGoB. The non-performing Consultants falling under category B and C shall be subjected to referral to the Debarment Committee and the decision of the Committee shall be final and binding.

